
 

 11 Exhibition Street 
Melbourne VIC 3000 

GPO Box 1994 
Melbourne VIC 3001 

Telephone: (03) 8661 7777 
International: (613) 8661 7777 

Facsimile: (03) 9655 0401 
Email: melbourne@fwa.gov.au 

 

15 March 2010 

Jenny Savage 
National Finance Coordinator, National Tertiary Education Industry Union 
By email: jsavage@nteu.org.au 
 
cc: Simon Bragg 
Partner, DFK Collins Chartered Accountants 
By email: simon.bragg@dfkcollins.com.au 

Dear Ms Savage 

Re: Financial Report for the NTEU National Office (including the NTEU Fund) for the year 
ended 30 June 2008 (FR2008/390)  

I acknowledge receipt of the financial report of the NTEU national office (including the NTEU 
Fund) for the year ended 30 June 2008. The documents were lodged with Fair Work Australia 
(FWA) on 8 January 2010. I also acknowledge receipt of the Auditor’s opinions regarding the 
concise reports for the NTEU national office and the NTEU Fund, lodged with Fair Work Australia 
on 22 February 2010. 

The financial report has been filed. 

I have attached an addendum in which I make comments to assist you when you next prepare a 
financial report. Most of these comments have been raised with the NTEU previously and on a 
number of occasions, but they have not taken into account in the preparation of these reports. 
FWA aims to assist organisations in complying with their obligations under the RO Act and 
reporting guidelines, by providing advice about the errors identified in each the financial reports. 
After an organisation has been advised about errors in their financial reports, the General 
Manager of FWA expects full compliance with financial reporting obligations by organisations 
and, in normal circumstances, the financial reports would not filed if errors have been repeated.  

However it is understood that the NTEU has recently implemented major changes in the manner 
in which it keeps and accounts for its financial affairs and therefore areas of repeated non-
compliance have been overlooked. Please note the inaccuracies raised in the following 
addendum. Future financial reports will not be filed unless these inaccuracies are addressed. 

You are not required to take any further action in respect of the reports lodged.   

If you wish to discuss any matters further, I can be contacted on 03 86617929 or via email 
eve.anderson@fwa.gov.au. A copy of this letter and its addendum will also be forwarded to your 
auditor. 

Yours sincerely 

Eve Anderson 
Tribunal Services and Organisations 
Fair Work Australia 
Tel: 03 86617929 

Email: eve.anderson@fwa.gov.au 
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mailto:eve.anderson@airc.gov.au
mailto:eve.anderson@fwa.gov.au


Addendum to the Financial Report for the NTEU National Office (including the NTEU Fund) 
for the year ended 30 June 2008 (FR2008/390)  

The following comments are made to assist the NTEU when it next prepares a financial report. 
Future financial reports will not be filed unless the inaccuracies as outlined below have been 
addressed. 

1. Timescale requirements 
As you are aware, reporting units are required to undertake their financial reporting obligations in 
accordance with specified timelines. As the 2008 reports have been completed, the relevant 
timelines are incapable of being remedied. However it should be noted that the timelines have 
not changed under the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (RO Act) and the 
preparation and lodgment of future financial reports must occur within these timelines.  

In particular, sections 253 and 254 of the RO Act require that a general purpose financial report 
(GPFR) and an operating report be prepared as soon as practicable after the end of the financial 
year. Further, section 266 requires that the financial report be presented to a general meeting of 
members or a committee of management meeting within six months after the end of the financial 
year. In the absence of an extension of time for holding a general meeting [see section 265(5)] 
the latest possible date of lodgment with Fair Work Australia is six months and 14 days after the 
end of the financial year. I have attached a document which sets out the timelines in 
diagrammatical form. 
 
In future years financial reports need to be prepared in sufficient time to enable presentation to a 
meeting within six months after the end of the financial year and lodged with Fair Work Australia 
no later than 14 days after that meeting. I note that the financial report for the year ended 30 
June 2009 is currently overdue. However, before lodgment, the NTEU is required to address the 
matters raised in this correspondence (where applicable). 

2. NTEU fund: whether a reporting unit 
The financial report for the NTEU fund appears to treat the NTEU fund as a reporting unit. 
Section 242(3) of the RO Act specifies that ‘[W]here an organisation is divided into branches, 
each branch will be a reporting unless a certificate issued by the General Manager stating that 
the organisation us, for the purpose of compliance with this part, divided into reporting units on 
an alternative basis…is in force.’  The fund itself cannot be a reporting unit as defined under the 
Act.  I recommend that in future financial reports the NTEU national office is identified as the 
reporting unit.  

3. Auditor’s statement: whether concise report complies with Australian Accounting 
Standards  

Subsection 265(3)(c) of the RO Act requires a concise report to consist of a statement by the 
auditor that the concise report complies with the relevant Australian Accounting Standards. The 
auditor’s reports on the concise reports lodged with FWA on 22 February 2010 state that the full 
reports comply with the Australian Accounting Standards, but they do not make a statement 
regarding the concise reports. In future years please ensure that the auditor states whether the 
concise report complies with Australian Accounting Standards. 

4. Concise report: resolution 
Subsection 265(2) of the RO Act specifies that a concise report can only be provided to members 
if the committee of management has so resolved.  In future years please ensure the concise 
report contains a statement that the NTEU committee of management has resolved to provide 
members with a concise report. 
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5. Concise report: discussion and analysis 
Regulation 161(1)(c) of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Regulations 2009 requires that 
a concise report contain a ‘discussion and analysis of the principal factors affecting the financial 
performance, financial position and financial and investing activities of the reporting unit to assist 
the understanding of members.’ In future concise reports, please include a discussion and 
analysis of these factors. Paragraph 5.3.3 of AASB 1039 provides guidance as to matters to be 
addressed in the discussion and analysis.  

6. Cash flows from reporting units 
Item 15 of the reporting guidelines requires that where another reporting unit is the source of 
cash inflow, the cash flow should be separately disclosed in the notes and the notes should show 
the name of the other reporting unit.  Note 15 to the financial statements of the NTEU Fund 
discloses the cash inflows, but does not separately disclose the cash flow from each reporting 
unit and the name of each reporting unit. The rules of the NTEU, as they stood at the time of 
these financial report, required branches to pay the national office a portion of dues collected 
each month. Therefore the disclosure of cash inflows from other reporting units would be 
expected in the national office financial report. However I cannot locate any such disclosure.  

I understand that the rules of the NTEU have changed so that other reporting units no longer 
have funds and therefore cash flows between reporting units should not occur. However if the 
rules regarding financial arrangements were to alter so that cash flows between reporting units 
can occur, then the amount of cash flow and the name of each reporting report must be 
separately disclosed in the notes. 

7. Operating report: list of office holders 
The operating reports contain a list of office holders as at the beginning of the financial 
year. Please note that regulation 159(c) of the Fair Work (Registered  Organisations) 
Regulations 2009) requires operating reports to contain the name of each person who has 
been a member of the committee of management of the reporting unit at any time during 
the reporting period, and the period for which he or she held such a position. Please ensure 
that future operating reports include the names of the office holders for the full financial 
year and the period each office was held. 

8. Recovery of wages 
The committee of management statements for both the national office and the NTEU Fund state 
that recovery of wages statements were prepared and audited, but no recovery of wages activity 
statements and no audit of these statements were lodged, as required under items 16 to 23 of 
the reporting guidelines.  If recovery of wages activity was undertaken in the financial year ending 
30 June 2008 and the NTEU national office has derived revenues from this activity, then the 
required statements need to prepared, audited and lodged. In future years, if no recovery of 
wages activity (from which revenue has been derived) has been undertaken, then the committee 
of management statement should declare that no such activity has been undertaken. 

9. Employee benefits 
The reporting guidelines require the disclosure, either in the income statement or in the notes, of 
employee benefits to holders of office (item 11(g)) and employee benefits to other employees 
(item 11(h)). Note 3 to the national office financial statements does not distinguish employee 
benefits for office holders from benefits for other employees. In future years please ensure that 
employee benefits for office holders are distinguished from benefits for other employees. 

The reporting guidelines also require either the balance sheet or the notes disclose any liability 
for employee benefits in respect of office holders and other employees (items 14(c) and 14 (d)).  
Note 12 to the NTEU Fund financial statements does not distinguish between provisions for office 
holders and other employees. In future years please ensure that provisions for office holders are 
distinguished from provisions for other employees. 
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10. Notes: revenue policy 
Note 1(c) for the NTEU Fund financial statements explains the policy for the collection and 
accounting for national fees, which would not appear to be pertinent to revenue for the NTEU 
Fund.  In future years please ensure the policy regarding recognition of revenue accurately 
reflects the policy applicable to the reporting unit. 

11. References to the relevant legislation 
Note 1(n) in the NTEU Fund financial report does not refer to Schedule 1.  Also, the section 272 
statement in the concise report of the NTEU Fund and in both the full report and concise report of 
the national office refer to Schedule 1B.  Such references should have been to Schedule 1 of the 
Workplace Relations Act 1996. Futures statements and declarations that refer to actions on or 
from 1 July 2009 should to refer to the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. 
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RO Fact Sheet No. 09/2009 1 July 2009 
 
Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 Legislation Fact Sheet 

Diagrammatic Summary of Financial Reporting Time-lines 
 

Financial reports are to be lodged with FWA within 6½ months of end of financial year by completing the 
steps as outlined below. 
 
See Fact Sheet 8 for an explanation of each of these steps. 

 
 

 
Reporting unit must keep proper financial records  

 s252 (see Fact Sheet 6) 

During 
Financial 
Year 

 
 

 
 

STEP 1: Reporting unit to prepare:  

 General Purpose Financial Report,  

 Committee of Management Statement, and 

 Operating Report  
ss253 & 254 and Reporting Guidelines 

 
 

 
 

STEP 2: Auditor’s Report 
Auditor to prepare and provide to Reporting unit 

 s257 and Reporting Guidelines 
 

 
 

 
 

 

STEP 3: provide to 
members at least 21 days 
before General Meeting 

s265(5)(a) 

STEP 3: provide to members 
within 5 months of end of 

financial year 
s265(5)(b) 

  
STEP 4: Present to a 
General Meeting of 

Members 
s266(1) & (2) 

 

STEP 4: Present to 
Committee of Management 

Meeting  
(if the rules allow) 

s266(3) 
 

Within 
14 days 
of 
General 
Meeting 

 STEP 5: Lodge with FWA 
Lodge all Reports and Designated Officers Certificate with FWA 
within 14 days of the meeting at which financial reports presented 

s268 and regulation162 

Subject to 
rules of 

organisation 

As soon as 
practicable 
after end of 
financial year 

Within a 
reasonable 
time 

At least 21 
days before 
the General 
Meeting 
 
 
 
Within 6 
months of end 
of financial 
year  
 
 

Within 5 
months of 
end of 
financial 
year 

Within 6 months 
of end of 
financial year 

Within 14 days 
of Committee of 
Management 
Meeting 

 



National 
Tertiary 
Education 
Industry 
Union 

NATIONAL OFFICE 

ABN J8 579 J96 J44 
first floor, 120 Clarendon Street, South Melbourne J205 

PO Box 1J2J, South Melbourne J205 
Tel: (OJ) 9254 1910 Fax: (OJ) 9254 1915 

Email: nteunat@nteu.org.au 
Web: www.nteu.org.au 

Certificate of Secretary or other Authorised Officer 

s268 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 

I, Grahame McCulloch, being General Secretary of the National Tertiary Education Industry 
Union, certify: 

• that the documents lodged herewith are copies of the full and concise report of the 
National Tertiary Education Industry Union, referred to in s268 of the Fair Work 
(Registered Organisations) Act 2009; and 

• that the full report was provided to members in the NTEU journal 'Advocate' on 18 
November 2009; and 

• that the concise report was uploaded to the NTEU Website on Wednesday 4 
November 2009; and 

• that the full report was presented to a meeting of the Committee of Management of 
the reporting unit on 21 December 2009 in accordance with section 266 of the Fair 
Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. 

GRAHAME McCULLOCH 
General Secretary 

8-1 \ \!9--\ ~0'\ 
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Principal activities 

NATIONAL TERTIARY EDUCATION INDUSTRY UNION 

OPERATING REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

The principal activities of the Union during the financial year were: 

• To improve and protect the salaries and conditions of employment of our members; 

• To represent our members in approaches to and discussions with their employer; 

• To negotiate collective agreements which improve the conditions of employment of our members; 

• To enforce existing industrial agreements on behall of our members; and 

• To promote industrial peace through conciliation and arbitration. 

Results of principal activities 

The Union's principal activities resulted in the maintenance and improvement of the salaries and conditions 
of employment of our members, especially lor those members covered by collective agreements 
negotiated by the Union. 

Significant changes in the nature of principal activities 

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Branch's principal activiTies during the financial year. 

Significant changes In the union's financial affairs 

Other than the transfer of assets and liabilities to the NTEU Fund as detailed in Note 1 to the financial 
statements, no other matters or circumstances arose during the reporting year which significantly affected 
the financial affairs of the Branch. 

Trustee or director of a trustee company of a superannuation entity or an exempt public sector 
superannuation scheme 

Edward Murphy, National Assistant Secretary, and NTEU Executive member is a Director of Unisuper, the 
industry Superannuation fund for academics and general staff in higher education institutions. 

Number of members 

The number of persons who, at the end of the financial year, were recorded on the Register of Members 
were 23,966 (2007: 24,808}. 

National T ertlary Education Industry Union 
Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2008 



Number of employees 

NATIONAL TERTIARY EDUCATION INDUSTRY UNION 

OPERATING REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 (continued) 

2 

The number of persons who were, at the end of the financial year, employees of the Union were 30 
(inducting three part time employees) measured on a full time equivalent basis. 

Members of the committee of management 

The persons who held office as members of the Committee of Management of the Union at the beginning 
of the financial year were: 

President Carolyn Allport 

Vice President (Academic) Gregory McCarthy 

Vice President (General) Jo Hibbert 

General Secretary Grahame McCulloch 

National Assistant Secretary Edward Murphy 

Indigenous Member Terry Mason 

National Executive Member Matthew McGowen 

National Executive Member Margaret Lee 

National Executive Member Neil Mudford 

National Executive Member Thomas Dunning 

National Executive Member Lynette Bloom 

National Executive Member Susan Bandias 

National Executive Member Chris Game 

National Executive Member James Doughney 

National Executive Member Shane Motlap 

National Executive Member Thomas Stewart 

National Executive Member Jeanette Pierce 

National Executive Member Andrew Bonnell 

National Executive Member Derek Corrigan 

National Executive Member Jan Hunt 

National Executive Member Jeannie Rea 

National Executive Member Kevin Poynter 

Executive Officer (President) Mark Probst 

Executive Officer (General Secretary) Anastasia Kotaidis 

Na1ional Tertiary Education 1ndus1ry Union 
Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2008 
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NATIONAL TERTIARY EDUCATION INDUSTRY UNION 

OPERATING REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 (continued) 

Manner of resignation- s254(2)(c) 

Members may resign !rom the Union in accordance with Rule 11 (Resignation from Membership} which 
reads as follows: 

11.1 A member may resign from membership by written notice addressed and delivered to the 
member's Division Secretary or Branch Secretary provided that: 

(a} Where a written notice of resignation is received by a Division Secretary, he. or she shall as 
soon as practicable forward a copy of the notice of resignation to the appropriate Branch 
Secretary; or 

(b) Where a written notice of resignation is received by a Branch Secretary, he or she shall as 
soon as practicable forward a copy of the notice of resignation to the relevant Division 
Secretary. 

11.2 A notice of resignation from membership takes effect: 

(a) where the member ceases to be eligible to become a member of the Union 

(i} on the day on which the notice is received by the Union; or 

(ii} on the day specified in the notice, which is a day not earlier than the day when the 
member ceases to be eligible to become a member; 

whichever is later; or 

(b) In any other case: 

(i} at the end of two weeks, or rr permitted by law three months after the notice is 
received by the Union; or 

(ii) on the day specified in the notice; 

whichever is later. 

11.3 Any dues payable but not paid by a former member in relation to a period before the member's 
resignation took effect, may be sued for and recovered in the name of the Union in a court of 
competent jurisdiction; as a debt due to the Union. 

11.4 A notice delivered to the Division Secretary or Branch Secretary shall be taken to have been 
received by the Union when it was delivered. 

11.5 A notice of resignation that has been received by the Union is not invalid because it was not 
addressed and delivered in accordance with sub-rule 1 of this rule. 

11.6 A resignation from membership is valid even if it Is not effected In accordance with this rule if the 
member is Informed in writing by or on behalf of the Union that the resignation has been accepted. 

11.7 Cessation of payment of any dues, levies and other amounts by a member does not, of itself, 
terminate membership of the Union. 

Name: Grahame McCulloch 

Title: General Secretary 

Signature: /Jui~;.i/.J·~ 
Date: 9-o/to/OlooCf 

National Tertiary Education Industry Union 
Annual Report for \he year ended 30 June 2008 



NATIONAL TERTIARY EDUCATION INDUSTRY UNION 

COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT STATEMI':NT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

4 

On':>.{)/10/2009 the Committee of Management of the National Tertiary Education Industry Union passed 
the following resolution in relation to the general purpose financial report (GPFR) of the reporting unit for 
the financial year ended 30 June 2008: 

The Committee of Management declares in relation to the GPFR that in its opinion: 

(a) the financial statements and notes comply with lhe Australian Accounting Standards; 

(b) the financial statements comply with the reporting guidelines of the Industrial Registrar; 

(c) the financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial performance, financial 
position and cash flows of the reporting unit lor the financial year to which they relate; 

(d) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the reporting unit will be able to pay tts debts as and 
when they become due and payable; 

(e) during the financial year to which the GPFR relates and since the end of that year: 

i. meetings of the committee of management were held in accordance with the rules of the 
organisation including'the rules of the branch concerned; and 

ii. the financial affairs of the reporting unit have been managed in accordance with the rules of the 
organisation including the rules of a branch concerned: and 

iii. the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept and maintained in accordance with the 
RAO Schedule and the RAO Regulations; and 

iv. where .the organisation consists of two or more reporting units, the financial records oi the 
reporting unit have been kept as far as practicable, in a consistent manner to each of the other 
reporting units of the organisation; and 

v. the information sought in any request of a member of the reporting unit or a Registrar duly made 
under section 272 of the RAO Schedule has been furnished to the member or Registrar; and 

vi. there has been compliance with any order for inspection of financial records made by the 
Commission under section 273 of the RAO Schedule. 

(f) in relation to recovery of wages activity: 

i. the financial report on recovery of wages activity has been fairly and accurately prepared in 
accordance with the requirements of the reporting guidelines of the Industrial Registrar; and 

ii. the commitlee of management caused the auditor to include in the scope of the audit required 
under subsection 257(1) of the RAO Schedule all recovery of wages activity by the reporting unit in 
which revenues had been derived for the financial year in respect of such activity; and 

iii. no fees or reimbursements of expenses in relation to recovery of wages activity or donations or 
other contributions were deducted from moneys recovered from employers on behalf of workers 
other than reported in the financial report on recovery of wages activity and thl!' notes to the 
financial statements; and 

National Tertiary Education Industry Union 
Annual Report lor the year ended 30 June 2DOB 



NATIONAL TERTIARY EDUCATION INDUSTRY UNION 

COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 (continued) 

5 

lv. that prior to engaging in any recovery of wages activity, the organisation has disclosed to members 
by way of a written policy all fees to be charged or reimbursement of expenses required for 
recovery of wages activity, and any likely request lor donations or other contributions In acting for a 
worker in recovery of wages actlvtty; and 

v. no fees or reimbursements of expenses in relation to recovery of wages activity or donations or 
other contributions were deducted from moneys recovered from employers on behaff of workers 
until distributions of recovered money were made to the workers. 

For Committee of Management: Grahame McCulloch 

Title: General Secretary 

Signature: ~1/_j~ 
Date: 710{1 0/ ilDOCf -

National Tertiary Educa11on Industry Un1on 
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NATIONAL TERTIARY EDUCATION INDUSTRY UNION 

INCOME STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

Revenue from ordinary activities 

Expenses from ordinary activities 
Officers and central resources: 

Central operating costs & resources 
Publications 
Indigenous 
Executive and national council 
Co-operation with other organisations 

Equalisation & adjustment fund 
Industrial defence fund buildings works contribution 
Industrial 
Policy and research 
Recruitment and membership training 
Rnance and personnel 
Fair value adjustment 
Other expenses 
Transfer of net assets to NTEU Fund 

Tolal eXpenses from ordinary activities 

Net (deficit)lsurplus 

NOTE 

2 

3 
1 (k) 

2008 
$ 

8,171,719 

1,820,785 
151,653 
152,716 
849,861 
129,959 

1,200,756 

521,980 
452,611 
538,532 
687,894 

1,808,262 
844,376 

11,440,278 

20,599,663 

(12,427,944l 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 

National Tertiary Education Industry Union 
Annual Report lor the year ended 30 June 2008 

6 

2007 
$ 

11,406,902 

1,689,149 
157,054 
199,009 
792,845 
129,579 

1,384,118 
(500,000) 

504,596 
403,769 
574,993 
495,280 

155,643 

5,986,035 

5,420,867 



NATIONAL TERTIARY EDUCATION INDUSTRY UNION 

BAlANCE SHEET 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash assets 
Receivables 
Other financial assets 
Other 

TOTAl CURRENT ASSETS 

NON CURRENT ASSETS 

Receivables 
· Other financial assets 
Property, plant & equipment 

TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABiliTIES 

Payables 
Provisions 

TOTAl CURRENT LIABiliTIES 

NON CURRENT liABiliTIES 

Payables 
Provisions 

TOTAL NON CURRENT liABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 

EQUITY 

Reserves 
Accumulated surplus 

TOTAL EQUITY 

AS AT 30 JUNE 2008 

NOTE 

4 
5 
6 
7 

5 
6 
8 

9 
10 

9 
10 

11 
12 

2008 
$ 

The accompanying notes fonm part of these financial statements. 
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2007 
$ 

774,898 
685,405 

4,929,876 
77,234 

6,467,413 

111,802 
7,090,363 
4,421,633 

11,623,798 

18,091,211 

1,029,540 
739,962 

1,769,502 

3,831,417 
62,348 

3,893,765 

5,663,267 

12,427,944 

7,028,923 
5,399,021 

12,427,944 



NATIONAL TERTIARY EDUCATION INDUSTRY UNION 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

RESERVES 

Balance at start of period 
Transfers from retained earnings 
Transfers to retained earnings 

Balance at end of the period 

RETAINED EARNINGS 

Balance at start of period 
(Deficit)/surplus for the period 
Transfers to reserves 
Transfers from· reserves 

Balance at end of period 

NOTE 

11 

12 

2008 
$ 

7,028,923 

(7, 028,923) 

5,399,021 
(12,427,944) 

7,028,923 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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2007 
$ 

6,044,014 
984,909 

7,028,923 

963,063 
5,420,867 
(984,909) 

5,399,021 



NATIONAL TERTIARY EDUCATION INDUSTRY UNION 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

NOTE 2008 
$ 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Receipts 
Capitation fees and other receipts 9,633,946 
Interest received 71,245 

9,705,191 
Payments 
Cash payments in the course of operations (9,997,479). 
Net GST paid to Australian T axa\ion Office (398, 196) 

Net cash· flows from operating activities 13 (690,484) 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Payments ior other financial assets 
Payments for property, plant and equipment 

Net cash flow used In investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Proceeds from borrowings 
Payments of borrowings (84,414) 

Net cash flow used in financing activities (84,414) 

Net (decrease) In cash held (774,898) 

Cash at the beginning of the financial year 774,898 

Cash at the end of the financial year 4 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2008 

9 

2007 
$ 

9,319,796 
58,257 

9,378,053 

(6,650,541) 
(889, 191) 

1,838,321 

(1,540, 153) 
(3,893,071) 

(5,433,224) 

2,600,000 
(84,640) 

2,515,360 

(1 ,079,543) 

1 854,441 

774,898 



NATIONAL TERTIARY EDUCATION INDUSTRY UNION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
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The financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance 
with Australian Accounting Standards, Including Australian Accounting Interpretations and the 
requirements of the Workplace Relations Act 1996. 

(a) Basis of preparation 

·The financial report has been prepared on an accrual basis and is based on historical costs. It 
does not take into account changing money values or, except where stated, ctJrrent valuations of 
non-current assets. Unless otherwise stated ·all accounting policies are consistent with those of the 
prior year. 

In the application of Accounting Standards, management is required to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical 
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstance, 
the results of which form the basis of making the judgments. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates. 

The following is a summary of the material accounting policies adopted by the Union in the 
preparation of the financial report. The accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless 
otherwise stated. 

(b) Revenue recognllion 

(i) National Fee 

National tee revenue represents the National O!iice percentage of contributions made by Union 
members. The National fee revenue is recognised in the period in which the member has made 
their Union contribution. 

(ii) Other Revenue 

Other revenue comprises revenue earned from the provision of products or services, interest on 
monies deposited and rentals received from investment entities. These revenues are recognised 
when the goods or services are provided, or when the fee in respect of services provided is 
receivable. 

(c} Property, plant & equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation and amortisation of property, 
plant, and equipment and leasehold improvements is calculated on the straighHine basis in order 
to write the assets off over their estimated useful lives. 

(d) Leased assets 

The union has not entered Into any lease agreements. 

(e) Allowance for doubtful debts 

Allowance for doubtful debts is recognised when collection of trade debtors in full is no longer 
probable. Collectibllity of overdue accounts is assessed on an ongoing basis. 

National Tertiary Educalion Industry Union 
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NATIONAL TERTIARY EDUCATION INDUSTRY UNION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES (continued) 

(f) Employee benefits 

j 1 

Provision is made for the Union's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by 
employees to balance date. Employee benefits expected to be settled within one year jogether 
with benefits arising from wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave which will be 
settled after one year, have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability 
is settled plus related on-costs. 

Liabilities for employee entitlements, which are not expected to be settled within 12 months, are 
measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits. 

In determining the liability for employee entitlements, consideration has been given to future 
increases In wage and salary rates, and the economic entity's experience with staff departures. 
Related on-costs have also been included in the liability. 

(g) Income tax 

No provision for Income Tax is necessary as "Trade Unions" are exempt from income tax under 
Section 50-15 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997. 

(h) Cash flows 

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash includes cash on hand and held at call with 
banks, net of bank overdrafts. 

(i) Investments 

Investments In unlisted companies and unit trusts are carried at the lower of cost and recoverable 
amount. Loans relating to the investments are offset against the carrying value of the Investment 
to represent the Union's net interest In the investment. 

OJ Goods and services tax 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), 
except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office (ATO). 
In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part 
of an Item of the expense. 

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST Included. 

(k) Transfer of ne1 assets to NTEU Fund 

At 30 June 2008 all assets and liabilities were transferred to the NTEU Fund, in accordance with 
Schedule G of the registered rules. The transfer is a non-reciprocal transfer and has been 
accounted for as a contribution in accordance with AASB 1004 Contrfbutions. 

Na1ional Tertiary Education lndustry Union 
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NATIONAL TERTIARY EDUCATION INDUSTRY UNION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 200B 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

(I) Financial instruments 

Financial assets 

Bank Deposits on Call (Note 4) 

12 

Bank Deposits on Call are valuetj at cost. Interest is recognised as it accrues. Total weighted 
average Interest rate at balance date was 3.1% (2007: 5.5%) 

Receivables (Note 5) 
Receivables are carried at the nomiral amounts due less any allowance for doubtlul debts. 
Receivables are unsecured and credit terms are usually up to 30 days. 

Current Investments (Note 6) 
Current Investments comprise units in listed trusts at market bid price. Total weighted average 
interest rate at balance date was 5.36% (2007: 5.1%) 

Financial liabilities 

Payables (Note 9) 
Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received as at 
balance date, whether or not invoices have been received. Payables are unsecured, not subject to 
interest charges and are normally settled within 30 days of invoice receipt. 

(m) Allocation of current and non-current 

An Asset or a Liability shall be classified as current when It satisfies any of the following criteria: 
(a) it is expected to be settled in the entny's normal operating cycle; 
(b) it Is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 
(c) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or 
(d) the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability tor at least 
twelve months after the reporting date. 

All other assets and liabilities shall be classified as non current. 

(n) New accounting standards and interpretations 

Certain new Accounting Standards and interpretations have been published that are not 
mandatory for the 30 June 2008 reporting year. The Club has not, and does not Intend to, adopt 
the following Standards early: 

• Revised AASB 101 'Presentation of Financial Statements', AASB 2007-8 'Amendments to 
Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 101' and AASB 2007-10 'Further 
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 1 01' which are applicable 
to financial periods commencing on or after 1 January 2009. These changes will impact the 
presentation of the Financial Report but are not expected to impact the values disclosed. 

In addition to those Accounting Standards listed above, the AASB has also released a number of 
other Accounting Standards and Australian Interpretations. The application of these Accounting 
Standards and Australian Interpretations are not applicable to the entity. Consequently, they have 
not been specifically identified above. 
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NATIONAL TERTIARY EDUCATION INDUSTRY UNION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAl STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

1. SUMMARY OF·SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

(o) Impairment of Assets 

At each reporting date, the Division reviews the carrying values of its tangible and intangible assets 
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an 
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the assets fair value less 
costs to sell and value-in-use, is compared to the assets carrying value. Any excess of the assets 
carrying value over its recoverable value is expensed to the income statement. 

Where it Is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Division 
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

(p) Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributed to the acquisition of assets that necessarily take a substantial 
period of time to prepare for their intended use or sale, are added to the costs of those assets, until 
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. 

All other borrowing costs are recognised in expenses in the period in which they are incurred. 

National Tertiary Education lndus11)' Union 
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NATIONAL TERTIARY EDUCATION INDUSTRY UNION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

2008 
REVENUE FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES $ 

Operating revenue: 

National fee 5,594,464 
Equalisation and adjustment fund 864,249 
Sale ol publications 1,596 

Total operating revenue 6,460,309 

Ilion operating revenue: 

FEU investment income 
Rent received 224,909 
Directors fees 71,581 
Distribution Received 375,368 
Interest received 71,245 
Increase in net market value of investments 
Fund contributions 953,486 
Sundry Income 14 821 

Total non operating revenue 1,711,410 

Total revenue from ordinary activities 8,171,719 

OTHER EXPENSES 

Annual leave expense 24,891 
Long service leave expense 149,940 
FEU Expenses 349,000 
Depreciation expense 55,930 
AmortisaUon expense 45,703 
Audit services 218 912 

844,376 

National T ertlary Education Industry Union 
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2007 
$ 

5,188,552 
887,674 

5,118 

6,081,344 

3,706,190 
124,173 
63,844 

667,108 
58,257 

297,927 
400,000 

8,059 

5,325,558 

11,406,902 

33,939 
21,321 

36,052 
50,781 
13 550 

155,643 



NATIONAL TERTIARY EDUCATION INDUSTRY UNION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

4. CASH ASSETS 

Cash on hand 
Cash at bank 
Sllort term deposits 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

5. RECEIVABLES 

current 
Capitation fees In arrears 
Trade debtors 
Allowance for doubtful debts 
Loan - NTEU Vic Division 

Non current 
Loan- NTEU Vic Division 

6. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Current 
Investments in managed funds 

Non current 
Shares In International Bookshop Co-operative Limited 
-at cost 

Investments- at valuation: 
Federation of Education Union Unit Trust (F.E.U.) 
Federation of Education Unions Pty Ltd 
(Trustee of F.E.U.) 

2008 
$ 

15 

2007 
$ 

400 
638,476 
136,022 

774,898 

424,650 
477,651 

(225,000) 
8,104 

685,405 

111,802 

1,000 

7,089,362 

7,089,363 

7,090;363 

The Investment in the F.E.U. consists of 38% of tihe value of issued units in the Unit Trust 
that owns the land and buildings at 120 Clarendon St, South Melbourne. 

7. OTHER 

Prepayments 
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NATIONAL TERTIARY EDUCATION INDUSTRY UNION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

8. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT 

(i) Book value disclosure 

Building -at cost 
Accumulated depreciation 

Office equipment, fixtures & fittings - at cost 
Accumulated depreciation 

Leasehold improvements - at cost 
1\ccumulated amortisation 

Capital works in progress 

Net book value 

(ii) Reconciliation of the carrying amount 

Building 

Balance at beginning of period 
Additions 
Disposals 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Transfers of assets 

Balance at end of period 

3,475,986 

(4,947) 
(3,471 ,039) 

Office 
equipment 
fixtures & 

fittings 

488,616 

(50,983) 
(437,633) 

2008 
j; 

Leasehold 
improvement 

457,031 

(45, 703) 
(411,328) 

National Tertiary Education Industry Union 
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2007 
$ 

3,475,986 

3,475,986 

670,715 
(182,099) 

488,616 

539,269 
(82,238) 
457,031 

4,421,633 

Total 

4,421,633 

(101,633) 
( 4,320,000) 



NATIONAL TERTIARY EDUCATION INDUSTRY UNION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

9, PAYABLES 

Current 
Trade creditors 
Net GST payable 
Sundry creditors 
Amount owed to F.E.U. 
CBA Commercial Bill 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

Loan- Commonwealth Bank Australia 

Non current 
Loan- Commonwealth Bank Australia 
CBA Commercial Bill 
Amount owed to F.E.U. 

10. PROVISIONS 

Current 
Annual leave 
Long service leave 

Non current 
Long service leave 

Total provisions 

National Tertiary Education Industry l:lhion 
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$ 

17 

2007 
$ 

158,946 
114,009 
353,789 
266,588 
80,000 
56,208 

1,Q£9,540 

637,527 
2,514,000 

679,890 

3,831,417 

301,926 
438 036 

739,962 

62,348 

802,310 



NATIONAL TERTIARY EDUCATION INDUSTRY UNION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

11. RESERVES 

Industrial Defence Fund 
Public Action Fund 
Equalisation and Adjustment Fund 

Movements during the year 

Industrial Defence Fund 
Balance at beginning of year 
Transfer to accumulated surplus 
Transfer from accumulated surplus 

Balance at end of year 

Public Action Fund 
Balance at beginning of year 
Transfer to accumulated surplus 
Transfer from accumulated surplus 

Balance at end of year 

Equalisation and Adjustment Fund 
Balance at beginning of year 
Transfer to accumulated surplus 
Transfer from accumulated surplus 

Balance at end of year 

2008 
$ 

6,867,878 
{6,867 ,878) 

6,693 
(6,693) 

154,352 
(154,352) 
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2007 
$ 

6,867,878 
6,693 

154,352 

7,028,923 

5,504,053 
(298,192) 
1,662,017 

6,867,878 

6,693 

6,693 

533,268 
(1,594,118) 

1,215,202 

154,352 
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NATIONAL TERTIARY EDUCATION INDUSTRY UNION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

2008 
$ 

ACCUMULATED .SURPLUS 

Accumulated surplus at the beginning of the financial 5,399,021 
year 
Net operating surplusl(deficit) for the year (12,427,944) 
Transfer to and from reserves: 
Industrial Defence reserve 6,867,878 
Public Action reserve 6,693 
Equalisation and Adjustment reserve 154 352 

Accumulated surplus at the end of the financial year 

CASH FLOW. INFORMATION 

Reconciliation of net operating result to net cash flows 
from operating activities: 

Net operating (deficit)/surplus {12,427,944) 

Non-cash flows in operating activities: 
Depreciation & amortisation 101,633 
Provisions (802,310) 
Change in net market value of investments 12,020,239 

(1,108,382) 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 
(Increase) I decrease in receivables 797,207 
(Increase) I decrease in fixed assets 4,404,410 
(Increase) I decrease in other assets 77,234 
Increase I (decrease) in payables (4,860,953) 

Net cash flows from operating activities (690,484) 
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2007 
$ 

963,063 

5,420,867 

(1,369,824) 

384,915 

5,399,021 

5,420,867 

86,833 
55,263 

(4,004, 106) 
1,558,857 

26,189 

4,978 
248,297 

1,838,321 
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NATIONAL TERTIARY EDUCATION INDUSTRY UNION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

14. RELATED PARTY INFORMATION 

Executive officers 

The names of each· person holding the position of Executive Officer of the National Tertiary 
Education Industry Union during the financial year are: 

Carolyn Allport 
Matthew McGowen 
Neil Mudfard 
Chris Game 
Jeanette Pierce 
Jeannie Rea 

Grahame McCulloch 
Margaret Lee 
Thomas Dunning 
James Dotrghney 
Andrew Bonnell · 
Kevin Poynter 

Remuneration of key management personnel 

Income received or due and receivable by key 
management personnel of the Union. 

Short term employee benefits 
Post employment benefits 

Other related parties 

(i) State divisions and branches 

Edward Murphy 
Gregory McCarthy 
Lynette Bloom 
Shane Motlap 
Derek Corrigan 
Mark Probst 

Jo Hibbert 
Terry Mason 
Susan Bandias 
Thomas Stewart 
ian Hunt 
Anastasia Kotaidis 

2008 
$ 

2007 
$ 

416,538 
70,81 i 

404,607 
67,836 

487,349 472.443 

The National Office of the Union undertakes numerous transactions with State Divisions and 
Branches. All transactions between the State Divisions, and Branches were in the ordinary course 
of business and on normal comll)ercial terms and at market rates. 

The net of the amounts receivable from and amounts payable to the State Divisions and Branches 
at the end of the financial year are disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements. 

(ii) Federation of Education Union Unit Trust (F.E.U.) 

The union is a tenant of the building owned by the F.E.U. Rent and outgoings in connection with 
the occupancy are paid to the F.E.U. in the ordinary course of business and on normal commercial 
terms and conditions and at market rates. 

The amount payable to the F.E.U. at the end of the financial year is disclosed in Note 9 to the 
financial statements. 

(iii) Other related party transactions 

During the year, there were no transactions with related parties which require separate disclosure 
other than the transfer of net assets already disclosed in Note i. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

21 

15. FINANC!ALINSTRUMENTS 

(a) Significant accounting policies 

(b) 

Details of the significant accoun1ing policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for 
recognition, the basis of measurement, and the basis on which income and expenses are 
recognised, with respect to each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument 
are disclosed in Note 1 to the financial statements. 

Categorisation of financial Instruments 

Financial assets Note Category Carrying Carrying 
amount2008 amount2007 

Cash and cash 4 N/A 774,898 
equivalents 
Receivables 5 Receivables (at amortised cost) 797,207 
Investments in 6 Recorded at net fair value 12,020,239 
managed funds 

Financial 
liabilities 
Payables 9 FinancialliabiHties measured a! 4,860,957 

amortised cost 

(c) Credit risk 
Credit risk represents the loss that would be recognised if counterparties failed to pertorm as 
ccntracted. The entity's maximum exposure to credtt risk at balance date in relation to each 
class of recognised financial asset is represented by the carrying amount of those assets as 
indicated in the balance sheet. 

Financial assets that are either past due or impaired 
Currently the entity does not hold any collateral as security nor credit enhancements relating to 
any of Its financial assets. 
As at the reporting date, there is no event to indicate that any of the financial assets are 
impaired. 
There are no financial assets that have had their terms renegotiated so as to prevent them from 
being past due or impaired, and they are stated at !he carrying amounts as indicated. The 
following table discloses the ageing only of financial assets that are past due but not Impaired. 
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NATIONAL TERTIARY EDUCATION INDUSTRY UNION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 

Interest rate exposure and ageing analysis of financial assets 

Weighted Interest rate exposure Past due by 
average 
effective Fixed Non· Less 
interest Carrying interest Variable interest than 1 1-3 3months- 1-5 

rate amount rate interest rate bearing Month months 1 year years 
2008 % 

Gash assets 3.1 

Receivables 

lnvestmehts 5.4 

2007 

Gash assets 2.6 774,898 774,898 

Receivables 797,207 797,207 

Investments 5.1 12,020,239 12,020,239 

13,592,344 12,795,137 797,207 

(d) Liquidity risk 
Uquidity risk arises when the entity is unable to meet its financial obligations as they tall due. 
The entity operates under the policy of settling financial obligations within 30 days and in the 
event of a dispute, make payments within 30 days from the date of resolution. It also 
continuously manages risk through monitoring future cash flows and maturities planning to 
ensure adequate holding of high quality liquid assets and dealing in highly liquid markets. 
The entity's exposure to liquidity risl< Is deemed Insignificant based on prior periods' data and 
current assessment of risk. Maximum exposure to liquidity risk is the carrying amounts of 
financial liabilities. 

Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial liabilities 

2008 

Payables 

2007 

Payables 

Weighted Interest rate exposure 
average 
effective Fixed Variable 
interest Nominal interest 

rate 
interest Non-interest 

Less 
than 1 
month rate 

% 

7.2 

amount rate bearing 

4,860,957 3,831,478 693,735 235,744 

4,860,957 3,831,478 693,735 235,744 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 

(e) Market risk 

23 

The entity's exposure to market risk is primarily through interest rate risk and other price risks 
with no exposure to foreign currency or interest rate risk: Objectives, policies and processes 
used to manage each ol these risks are disclosed in the paragraphs below. 

Interest rate risk 
Exposure to interest rate risk might arise primarily through the entity's cash & deposits. 
Minimisation ol risk is achieved by mainly undertaking fixed rate or non-interest bearing financial 
instruments. 
As the entity does not hold any financial instruments at 30 June 2008, there is no exposure to 
interest rate.risk or other price risks. 

(I) Fair value 
The fair values and net fair values ol financial assets and llnancialllabilitles are determined as 
lollows: 

• the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions 
and traded in active liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices; 
and 

• the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in accordance 
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis. 

The entity considers that the carrying amount of linancial assets and financial liabnities recorded 
in the financial report to be a fair approximation of their fair values. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2.008 

16. INFORMATION TO BE PROVIDED TO MEMBERS OR REGISTRAR 

24 

In accordance with the requirements of the Workplace Relations Act t 996, the attention of members is 
drawn to the provision of subsections (!), (2) and (3) of secflon 272 of Schedule 1B- Registration of 
Accountability of Organisations which read as follows: 

(i) "A member of a reporting uni~ or a Registrar, may apply to the reporting unit for specified 
· prescribed infonmation in relation to the reporting unit to be made available to the person making 
the application. 

(2) The application must be in writing and must specify the period within which, and the matter in 
which, the information is to be made available. The period must not be less than !4 days after the 
application Is given to the reporting unit. 

(3) A reporting unit must comply with an application made under subsection(!)." 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
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Level 5, 30 Collins Street 
Melbourne Victoria 3000 
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Scope 

The financial report and Executive Committee's responsibility 

The general purpose financial report comprises the income statement, balance sheet, cash flow statement, statement 
of changes in equity, accompanying notes to the financial statements, and the Executive Committee's statement of 
the National Tertiary Education Industry Union for the year ended 30 June 2008, 

The Executive Committee of the Union is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in 
accordance with the Workplace Relation Act 1996. This includes responsibility for lhe maintenance of adequate 
accounting records and internal controls that are designed to prevent and detect frauds and error, and for the 
accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in the financial report. 

Audit approach 

We conducted an independent audit in order to express an opinion to the members of the Union. Our audit was 
conducted in accordance wilh Australian Auditing Standards in order to provide reasonable assurance as to whether 
the financial report is free of material misstatements. The nature of an audit is influenced by factors such as the use 
of professional judgment, selective testing, the inherent limitation of internal control, and the availability of persuasive 
rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore, an audit cannot guarantee that all material misstatements have be.en 
detected. 

We performed procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents fairly, in accordance 
with Accounting Standards and other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia and the Workplace 
Relations Act 1996, a view which is consistent with our understanding of the Union's financial position, and of its 
performance as represented by the results of its operations and the cash fiows. 

We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures, which include: 
o examining on a test basis, information to provide evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 

financial report; and 
• assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disclosures used and the reasonableness of 

significant accounting estimates made by the executive Committee. 

While we considered the effectiveness of management internal controls over financial reporting when determining the 
nature and extent of our procedures, our audit was riot designed to provide assurance of internal controls. 

Independence 

In conducting our audit, we followed applicable independence requirements of Australian professional ethical 
pronouncements. 

Audit Opinion 

In our opinion the general purpose financial report is presented fairly in accordance with applicable Australian 
Accounting Standards and the requirements imposed by Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the RAO Schedule of the Workplace 
Relations Act 1996. 

~· G,_._' .,j ~ 
DFK Collins 
Chartered Accountants 

S.~~ g"-";j j 
Simon Bragg, A.CA 
Partner 
Registered Company Auditor, Registration Number: 291536 

2. ? &-{c.;:;,hcu-­
Melbourne 

liability llmlted by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation ~~~~ ~ Bi.'li!!lllll{ 
A member firm of DFK International, a worldwide association of independent accounting firms and business advisers \,-~~ur~ 
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NATIONAL TERTIARY EDUCATION INDUSTRY UNION 

CONCISE FINANCIAL REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

The concise financial report has been derived from the full financial report and cannot be 
expected to provide as full an understanding of the financial performance, financial position 
and financial and investing activities of the reporting unit to assist understanding of the 
members. 

Information to be Provided to Members or Registrar 

In accordance with the requirements of the Workplace Relations Act 1996, the attention of 
members is drawn to the provision of subsections (1 ), (2) and (3) of section 272 of Schedule 
1 B- Registration of accountability of Organisations which read as follows: 

(1) "A member of a reporting unit, or a Registrar, may apply to the reporting unit for 
specified prescribed information in relation to the reporting unit to be made available to the 
person making the application. 

(2) The application must be in writing and must specify the period within which, and the 
matter in which, the information is to be made available. The period must not be less than 14 
days after the application is given to the reporting unit. 

(3) A reporting unit must comply with an application made under subsection (1 )." 

Financial Statements 

The Union will provide a copy of the report, accounts and statements for the year ended 30 
June 2008 free of charge to any member who requests them. 
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NATIONAL TERTIARY EDUCATION INDUSTRY UNION 

COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

On i!li$!12009 the Committee of Management of the National Tertiary Education Industry 
Union passed the following resolution in relation to the general purpose financial report 
(GPFR) of the reporting unit for the financial year ended 30 June 2008: 

The Committee of Management declares in relation to the GPFR that in its opinion: 

(a) the financial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting Standards; 

(b) the financial statements comply with the reporting guidelines of the Industrial Registrar; 

(c) the financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial 
performance, financial position and cash flows of the reporting unit for the financial year 
to which they relate; 

(d) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the reporting unit will be able to pay its 
debts as and when they become due and payable; 

(e) during the financial year to which the GPFR relates and since the end of that year: 

i. meetings of the committee of management were held in accordance with the rules of 
the organisation including the rules of the branch concerned; and 

ii. the financial affairs of the reporting unit have been managed in accordance with the 
rules of the organisation including the rules of a branch concerned: and 

iii. the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept and maintained in 
accordance with the RAO Schedule and the RAO Regulations; and 

lv. where the organisation consists of two or more reporting units, the financial records 
of the reporting unit have been kept as far as practicable, in a consistent manner to 
each of the other reporting units of the organisation; and 

v. the information sought in any request of a member of the reporting unit or a Registrar 
duly made under section 272 of the RAO Schedule has been furnished to the 
member or Registrar; and 

vi. there has been compliance with any order for inspection of financial records made by 
the Commission under section 273 of the RAO Schedule. 

(f) in relation to recovery of wages activity: 

i. the financial report on reco.very of wages activity has been fairly and accurately 
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the reporting guidelines of the 
Industrial Registrar; and 

ii. the committee of management caused the auditor to include in the scope of the audit 
required under subsection 257{1) of the RAO Schedule all recovery of wages activity 
by the reporting unit In which revenues had been derived for the financial year in 
respect of such activity; and 



NATIONAL TERTIARY EDUCATION INDUSTRY UNION 

COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 (continued) 

iii. no fees or reimbursements of expenses in relation to recovery of wages activity or 
donations or other contributions were deducted from moneys recovered from 
employers on behalf of workers other than reported in the financial report on recovery 
of wages activity and the notes to the financial statements; and 

iv. that prior to engaging in any recovery of wages activity, the organisation has 
disclosed to members by way of a written policy all fees to be charged or 
reimbursement of expenses required for recovery of wages activity, and any likely 
request for donations or other contributions in acting for a worker in recovery of 
wages activity; and 

v. no fees or reimbursements of expenses in relation to recovery of wages activity or 
donations or other contributions were deducted from moneys recovered from 
employers on behalf of workers until distributions of recovered money were made to 
the workers. 

For Committee of Management: Grahame McCulloch 

Title: General Secretary 

Signature: /lvil{;f!t~~~ 
Date: 2 0 /I t7 /<.ooq 



NATIONAL TERTIARY EDUCATION INDUSTRY UNION 

OPERATING REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

Principal activities 

The principal activities of the Union during the financial year were: 

" To improve and protect the salaries and conditions of employment of our members; 

• To represent our members in approaches to and discussions with their employer; 

• To negotiate collective agreements which improve the conditions of employment of 
our members; 

• To enforce existing industrial agreements on behalf of our members; and 

• To promote industrial peace through conciliation and arbitration. 

Results of principal activities 

The Union's principal activities resulted in the maintenance and improvement of the salaries 
and conditions of employment of our members, especially for those members covered by 
collective agreements negotiated by the Union. 

Significant changes in the nature of principal activities 

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Union's principal activities during the 
financial year. 

Significant changes in the Union's financial affairs 

Other than the transfer of assets and liabilities to the NTEU Fund as detailed in Note 1 to the 
financial statements, no other matters or circumstances arose during the reporting year which 
significantly affected the financial affairs of the Branch. 

Trustee or Director of a Trustee Company of a Superannuation Entity or an Exempt 
Public Sector Superannuation Scheme 

Edward Murphy, National Assistant Secretary, and NTEU Executive member is a Director of 
Unisuper, the industry Superannuation fund for academics and general staff in higher 
education institutions. 

Number of members 

The number of persons who, at the end of the financial year, were recorded on the Register of 
Members were 23,966 (2007: 24,808). 

Number of employees 

The number of persons who were, at the end of the financial year, employees of the Union 
was 30 (including three part time employees) measured on a full time equivalent basis. 



NATIONAL TERTIARY EDUCATION INDUSTRY UNION 

OPERATING REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 (continued) 

Members of the committee of management 

The persons who held office as members of the Committee of Management of the Union at 
the end of the financial year were: 

President Carolyn Allport 
·-~~"--~' 

Vice President (Academic) Gregory McCarthy 

Vice President (General) Jo Hibbert 

General Secretary Grahame McCulloch 

National Assistant Secretary Edward Murphy 

Indigenous Member Terry Mason 

National Executive Member Matthew McGowen 

National Executive Member Margaret Lee 

National Executive Member Neil Mudford 

National Executive Member Thomas Dunning 

National Executive Member Lynette Bloom 

National Executive Member Susan Bandias 

National Executive Member Chris Game 

National Executive Member James Doughney 

National Executive Member Shane Motlap 

National Executive Member Thomas Stewart 

National Executive Member Jeanette Pierce 

National Executive Member Andrew Bonnell 

National Executive Member Derek Corrigan 

National Executive Member lan Hunt 

National Executive Member Jeannie Rea 

National Executive Member Kevin Poynter 

Executive Officer (President) Mark Probst 

Executive Officer (General Secretary) Anastasia Kotaidis 



NATIONAL TERTIARY EDUCATION INDUSTRY UNION 

OPERATING REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 (continued) 

Manner of resignation- s254(2)(c) 

Members may resign from the Union in accordance with Rule 11 (Resignation from 
Membership) which reads as follows: 

11.1 A member may resign from membership by written notice addressed and delivered to 
the member's Division Secretary or Branch Secretary provided that: 

(a) Where a written notice of resignation is received by a Division Secretary, he or 
she shall as soon as practicable forward a copy of the notice of resignation to the 
appropriate Branch Secretary; or 

(b) Where a written notice of resignation is received by a Branch Secretary, he or 
she shall as soon as practicable forward a copy of the notice of resignation to the 
relevant Division Secretary. 

11.2 A notice of resignation from membership takes effect: 

(a) where the member ceases to be eligible to become a member of the Union 

(i) on the day on which the notice is received by the Union; or 

(ii) on the day specified in the notice, which is a day not earlier than the day 
when the member ceases to be eligible to become a member; 

whichever is later; or 

(b) in any other case: 

(i) at the end of two weeks, or if permitted by law three months after the 
notice is received by the Union; or 

(ii) on the day specified in the notice; 

whichever is later. 

11.3 Any dues payable but not paid by a former member in relation to a period before the 
member's resignation took effect, may be sued for and recovered in the name of the 
Union in a court of competent jurisdiction, as a debt due to the Union. 

11.4 A notice delivered to the Division Secretary or Branch Secretary shall be taken to 
have been received by the Union when it was delivered. 

11.5 A notice of resignation that has been received by the Union is not invalid because it 
was not addressed and delivered in accordance with sub-rule 1 of this rule. 

11.6 A resignation from membership is valid even If it is not affected in accordance with 
this rule if the member is informed in writing by or on behalf of the Union that the 
resignation has been accepted. 

11.7 Cessation of payment of any dues, levies and other amounts by a member does not, 
of itself, terminate membership of the Union. 

Name: Grahame McCulloch 

Title: General Secretary 

Signature: /?u!f«11f~t<~ 
Date: -a_o(to /'2-ooo; 



NATIONAL TERTIARY EDUCATION INDUSTRY UNION 

INCOME STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

Revenue from ordinary activities 

Expenses from ordinary activities 
Officers and central resources: 

Central operating costs & resources 
Publications 
Indigenous 
Executive and national council 
Co-operation with other organisations 

Equalisation & adjustment fund 
Industrial defence fund buildings works contribution 
Industrial 
Policy and research 
Recruitment and membership training 
Finance and personnel 
Fair value adjustment 
Other expenses 
Transfer of net assets to NTEU Fund 

Total expenses from ordinary activities 

Net (deficit)/surplus 

NOTE 

2 

3 
1 {k) 

2008 
$ 

8,171,719 

1,820,785 
151,653 
152,716 
849,861 
129,959 

1,200,756 

521,980 
452,611 
538,532 
687,894 

1,808,262 
844,376 

11,440,278 

20,599,663 

(12,427,944) 

2007 
$ 

11,406,902 

1,689,149 
157,054 
199,009 
792,845 
129,579 

1,384,118 
{500,000) 

504,596 
403,769 
574,993 
495,280 

155,643 

5,986,035 

5,420,867 



NATIONAl TERTIARY EDUCATION INDUSTRY UNION 

BALANCE SHEET 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash assets 
Receivables 
Other financial assets 
Other 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

NON CURRENT ASSETS 

Receivables 
Other financial assets 
Property, plant & equipment 

TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Payables 
Provisions 

TOTAl CURRENT LIABILITIES 

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Payables 
Provisions 

AS AT 30 JUNE 2008 

TOTAl NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 

EQUITY 

Reserves 
Accumulated surplus 

TOTAL EQUITY 

NOTE 

4 
5 
6 
7 

5 
6 
8 

9 
10 

9 
10 

11 
12 

2008 
$ 

2007 
$ 

774,898 
685,405 

4,929,876 
77,234 

6,467,413 

111,802 
7,090,363 
4,421,633 

11,623,798 

18,091,211 

1,029,540 
739,962 

1,769,502 

3,831,417 
62,348 

3,893,765 

5,663,267 

12,427,944 

7,028,923 
5,399,021 

12,427,944 



NATIONAL TERTIARY EDUCATION INDUSTRY UNION 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

RESERVES 

Balance at start of period 
Transfers from retained earnings 
Transfers to retained earnings 
Balance at end of the period 

RET AtNED EARNINGS 

Balance at start of period 
(Deficit)/surplus for the period 
Transfers to rese!Ves 
Transfers from reseiVes 
Balance at end of period 

NOTE 

11 

12 

2008 
$ 

7,028,923 

{7,028,923} 

5,399,021 
(12,427,944) 

7,028,923 

2007 
$ 

6,044,014 
984,909 

7,028,923 

963,063 
5,420,867 
(984,909) 

5,399,021 



NATIONAL TERTIARY EDUCATION INDUSTRY UNION 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

NOTE 2008 2007 
$ $ 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Receipts 
Capitation fees and other receipts 9,633,946 9,319,796 
Interest received 71,245 58,257 

9,705_,191 9,378,053 
Payments 
Cash payments in the course of operations (9,997,479) (6,650,541) 
Net GST paid to Australian Taxation Office (398,196) {889, 191} 

Net cash flows from operating activities 13 {690,484) 1,838,321 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Payments for other financial assets (1 ,540, 153) 
Payments for property, plant and equipment {3,893,071 ~ 

Net cash flow used in investing activities (5,433,224} 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Proceeds from borrowings 2,600,000 
Payments of borrowings (84,414} (84,640) 

Net cash flow used in financing activities (84,414) 2,515,360 

Net (decrease) in cash held (774,898) (1 ,079,543) 

Cash at the beginning of the financial year 774,898 1,854,441 

Cash at the end of the financial year 4 774,898 
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Certificate of Secretary or other Authorised Officer 

s268 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 

I, Grahame McCulloch, being General Secretary of the National Tertiary Education Industry 
Union, certify: 

• that the documents lodged herewith are copies of the full and concise report of the 
NTEU Fund, referred to in s268 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 
2009; and 

• that the full report was provided to members in the NTEU journal 'Advocate' on 18 
November 2009; and 

• that the concise report was uploaded to the NTEU Website on Wednesday 4 
November 2009; and 

• that the full report was presented to a meeting of the Committee of Management of 
the reporting unit on 21 December 2009 in accordance with section 266 of the Fair 
Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. 

GRAHAME McCULLOCH 
General Secretary 

&\ \ ~\ l?GC>~ 

P:\Finance\Finanda! Reports\Certificate of Secretary or other Authorised Officer.docx 
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NTEUFUND 

OPERATING REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

Principal activities 

The principal activities of the Union during the financial year were: 

• -ro improve and protect the salaries and conditions of employment of our members; 

• To represent our members in approaches to and discussions with their employer; 

• To negotiate collective agreements which improve the conditions of employment of our members; 

• To enforce existing industrial agreements on behalf of our members; and 

• To promote industrial peace tl1rough conciliation and arbitration. 

Results· of principal activi1ies 

The Union's principal activities resulted in the maintenance and improvement of the salaries and conditions of 
employment of our members, especially for those members covered by collective agreements negotiated by 
the Union, 

Significant changes in the nature of principal activities 

There were no significant changes In the nature of the Union's principal activities during the financial year. 

Significant changes in the Union's financial affairs 

Other than the transfer of assets and liabilities to the NTEU Fund from NTEU Branches and Divisions as 
detailed in Note t to the financial statements, no other matters or circumstances arose during the reporting 
year which significantly affected the financial affairs of the Entity. 

Trustee or Director of a Trustee Company of a Superannuation Entity or an Exempt Public Sector 
Superannuation Scheme 

Edward Murphy, National Assistant Secretary, and NTEU Executive member is a Director of Unisuper, the 
industry Superannuation fund for academics and general staff in higher education institutions. 

Number of members 

The number of persons who, at the end of the financial year, were recorded on the Register of Members of the 
entitles included in the NTEU Fund was 23,966 (2007: nil). 

NTEUFuhd 
Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2008 



Number of employees 

NTEU FUND 

OPERATING REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 (continued) 

2 

The number of persons who were, at the end of the financial year, employees of the Union was 112.1 
measured on a full time equivalent basis. 

Members of the committee of management 

·The persons who held office as members of the Commltiee of Management of the Union at the beginning of 
the financial year were: 

President Carolyn Allport 

ViGe President (Academic) Gregory McCarthy 

Vice President (General) Jo Hibbert 

General Secretary Grahame McCulloch 

National Assistant Secretary Edward Murphy 

Indigenous Member Terry Mason 

National Executive Member Matthew McGowen 

National Executive Member Margaret Lee 

National Executive Member Neil Mudford 

National Executive Member Thomas Dunning 

National Executive Member Lyn Bloom 

National Executive Member Susan Bandias 

National Executive Member Chris Game 

National Executive Member James Doughney 

National Executive Member Shane Motlap 

National Executive Member Thomas Stewart 

National Executive Member Jeanette Pierce 

National Executive Member Andrew Bonnell 

National Executive Member Derek Corrigan 

Matlonal Executive Member ian Hunt 

National Executive Member Jeannie Rea 

National Executive Member Kevin Poynter 

Executive Officer (President) Mark Probst 

Executive Officer (General Secretary) Anastasia Kotaidis 

NTEU Fund 
Ahhual Report for the year ended 30 June 2008 



NTEUFUND 

OPERATING REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 (continued) 

Manner ot resignation- s254(2)(c) 

Members may resign from the Union in accordance with Rule 11 (Resignation from 
Membership) which reads as follows: 

11.1 A member may resign from membership by written notice addressed and delivered to 
the member's Division Secretary or Branch Secretary provided that: 

(a) Where a written notice of resignation is received by a Division Secretary, he or 
she shall as soon as practicable forward a copy of the notice of resignation to the 
appropriate Branch Secretary; or 

(b) Where a written notice of resignation is received by a Branch Secretary, he or 
she shall as soon as practicable forward a copy of the notice of resignation to the 
relevant Division Secretary. 

11.2 A notice of resigna1ion from membership takes effect: 

(a) where the member ceases to b<7 eligibl<7 to become a member of the Union 

(i) on the day on which the notice is received by the Union; or 

(iQ on the day specified in the notice, which is a day not earHer than the day 
when the member ceases to be eligible to become a member; 

whichever is later: or 

(b) in any other case: 

(I) at the end of two weeks, or lf permitted by law three months after the 
notice Is received by the Union; or 

(ii) on the day specified in the notice: 

whichever is later. 

11.3 Any dues payable but not paid by a former member in relation to a period before the 
member's resignation took effect, may be sued lor and recovered In the name of the 
Union in a court of competent jurisdiction, as a debt due to the Union. 

11.4 A notice delivered to the Division Secretary or Branch Secretary shall be taken to 
have been received by the Union when it was delivered. 

11.5 A notice of resignation that has been received by the Union is not invalid because it 
was not addressed and delivered in accordance with sub-rule 1 of this rule. 

11.6 A resignation from membership is valid even if it is not effected in accordance with 
this rule if the member Is informed in writing by or on behalf of the Union that the 
resignation has been accepted. 

11.7 Cessation of payment of any dues, levies and other amounts by a member does not, 
of Itself, terminate membership of the Union. 

Name: Grahame McCulloch 

Title: General Secrelary 

Signature: })'~Ak~ 
Date: 7-0 I /0 I ;;2 ooq 



NTEUFUND 

COMMITIEE OF MANAGEMENT STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006 

on:20J/f!J2009 the Committee of Management of the NTEU Fund passed the following 
resolution in relation to the general purpose financial report (GPFR) of the reporting unit for 
the financial year ended 30 June 2008: 

The Committee of Management declares in relafton to the GPFR that In its opinion: 

(a) the financial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting Standards; 

(b) the financial statements comply with the reporting guidelines of the Industrial Registrar; 

(c) the financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial 
performance, financial position and cash flows of the reporting unit for the financial year 
to which they relate; 

(d) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the reporting unit will be able to pay its 
debts as and when they become due and payable; 

(e) during the financial year to which the GPFR relates and since the end of that year: 

i. meetings of the committee of management were held in accordance with the rules of 
the organisation including the rules of the branch concerned; and 

ii. the financial affairs of the reporting unit have been managed in accordance with the 
rules of the organisation including the rules of a branch concerned: and 

iii. the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept and maintained in 
accordance with the RAO Schedule and the RAO Regulations; and 

iv. where the organisation consists of two or more reporting units, the financial records 
of the reporting unit have been kept as far as practicable, in a consistent manner to 
each of the other reporting units of the organisation; and 

v. the Information sought in any request of a member of the reporting unit or a Registrar 
duly made under section 272 of the RAO Schedule has been furnished to the 
member or Registrar; and 

vl. there has been compliance with any order for inspection of financial records made by 
the Commission under section 273 of the RAO Schedule. 

(f) in relation to recovery of wages activity: 

i. the financial report on recovery of wages activity has been fairly and accurately 
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the reporting guidelines of the 
Industrial Registrar; and 

ii. the committee of management caused the auditor to include in the scope of the audit 
required under subsection 257(1) of the RAO Schedule all recovery of wages activity 
by the reporllng unit in which revenues had been derived for the financial year in 
respect of such activity; and 

iii. no fees or reimbursements of expenses in relation to recovery of wages activity or 
donations or other contributions were deducted from moneys recovered from 
employers on behalf of workers other than reported in the financial report on recovery 
of wages activity and the notes to the financial statements; and 



NTEUFUND 

COMMITIEE OF MANAGEMENT STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 (continued) 

iv. that prior to engaging in any recovery of wages activity, the organisation has 
disclosed to members by way of a written policy all lees to be charged or 
reimbursement of expenses required lor recovery of wages activity, and any likely 
request for donations or other contributions in acting for a worker in recovery of 
wages activity; and 

v. no fees or reimbursements of expenses in relation to recovery of wages ae1ivity or 
donations or other contributions were deducted from moneys recovered from 
employels on behalf of workers until distributions of recovered money were made to 
the workers. 

For Committee of Management: Graeme McCulloch 

Title: General Secretary 

Signature: -~J~ 
Date: Qojro j:zooq 



NTEUFUND 

INCOME STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

REVENUE FROM ORDINARY ACTIV111ES 

EXPENSES 

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 

Note 

ECONOMIC ENTITY 
2008 

$ 
2007 

$ 

4, 1(p) 17 680,969 

17,680,969 

6 

CHIEF ENTITY 
2008 

$ 

17,680 969 

. 17,680,969 

2007 
$ 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 

NTEU Fund 
Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2008 
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NTEU.FUND 

BALANCE SHEET 

AS AT 30 JUNE 2008 

ECONOMIC ENTITY CHIEF ENTITY 

Note 2008 2007 2008 2007 
$ $ $ $ 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 5 6,41l7,082 6,254,766 

Trade and ather receivables 6 845,657 196,358 

Other financial assets 7 4,427,854 4,427,854 

other assets 8 158,504 133,060 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 11,919097 11,012,038 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

Other iinancia! assets 'f), 7 9,185,473 

Properly, plant and equipment·· 9 20,725,498 4,904175 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 20,725,498 14 089,648 

TOTAL ASSETS 32,844,595 25,101,686 

LIABILITIES 

Trade and other payables 10 4,958,157 1,61 9,195 

Financial liabilities 11 582,962 488,625 

Employee benefits 12 1,314 723 1,314,723 

TOTAL CURREN\J .. JABILITIES 6 855,842 3,422,543 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Trade and other payables 10 10,599 10,599 

Financial liabilities 1 1 4,438,817 2,730,226 

Employee bene1tts 12 1 257 349 1,257,349 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 5,706,765 3 998,174 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 12,562 607 7 420,717 

NET ASSETS 20,081,988 17,680,969 

EQUITY 

Reserves 13 11,269,826 11,269,826 

Relalned surplus 14 6,411,143 6A11 ,143 
Minority interest 2,401 019 

TOTAL EQUITY 20,081,988 17,680,969 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 

NTEU Fund 
Annual Report lor the year ended 30 June 2008 
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NTEU FUND 

STATEMENT OF: CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

Reserves Retained Surplus Minority interest Total Equity 

$ $ $ $ 

ECONOMIC ENTITY 

At 1 July 2006 

Surplus for the year 

At 30 June 2007 

Surplus for the year 17,680,969 17,680,969 

Transfers from reserves 11,269,826 11,269,826 

Transfers to reserves (11 ,269 ,826) (11 ,269,826) 

Minority tnterest upon 
consolidation 2,401,019 2,401,019 

At 00 June 2008 11,269,826 6,411,143 2,4011019 20,081,988 

CHIEF ENTITY 

At 1 July 2006 

Surplus for lhe year 

At 30 June 2007 

Surplus for the year 17,680,969 17,680,969 

Transfers from rese-rves 11,269,826 11,269,826 

Transfers to reserves (11,269,826) (11 ,269,826) 

At 30 June 2008 11,269,826 6,411,143 17,680,969 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements . 

. NTEU Fund 
Annual Report for 1.he year ended 30 June 2008 



NTEUFUND 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Payments 
Contribution of cash and cash equivalents 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Net cash used in investing activities 

CASH F~S FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Net cash used In investing activities 

Net increase in cash & cash equivalents held 

Gash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

No\e 

15 

5 

ECONOMIC ENTITY 

2008 
$ 

6,467,082 
6,487,062 

6,487,062 

. 6,487,082 

2007 
$ 

9 

CHIEF ENTITY 

2008 
$ 

6 254,766 
6,254,766 

6,254,766 

6 254,766 

2007 
$ 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 

NTEU Fund 
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NTEU FUND 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOfl THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

10 

The financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepar!ld .in accordance with Australian . 
Accounting Standards, including Australian Accounting Interpretations and the requirements of the Workplace 
Relations Act 1996. 

(a) Basis of preparation 

The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs. It does not take 
into account changing money values or, except where stated, current valuations of non-current assets. Unless 
otherwise stated all accounting policies are consistent with those of the prior year. 

In the application of Accounting Standards, management is required to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. 
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that 
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstance, the results of which form the basis of making the 
judgments. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

The following is a summary of the material accounting policies adopted by the Union In the preparation of the 
· financial report. The accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated. 

(b) Consolidation 

The consolidated accounts reflect the results of operations and state of affairs of the National Tertiary 
Education Union, its divisions and branches and of its controlled entity. The details of the controlled entity 
are contained in Note i6(c). A controlled entity Is any entity controlled by NTEU. Control exists where the 
Union has capacity to dominate the decision-making in relation to the financial and operating policies of 
another entity so that the other entity operates whh the Union to achieve its objectives. All intercompany 
balances and transactions between ent~ies in the ecoriomic entity, including any unrealised profits or 
losses, have been eliminated on consolidation. 

(c) Revenue recognition 

(i) National Fee 

National fee revenue represents the National Office percentage of contributions made by Union members. 
The National lee revenue is recognised in the period in which the member has made their Union contribution. 

(ii) other Revenue 

other revenue comprises revenue earned from the provision of products or services, interest on monies 
deposited and rentals received from investment entitles. These revenues are recognised when the goods or 
services are provided, or when the fee in respect of services provided is receivable. 

(d) Property, plant & equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant, and 
equipment and leasehold improvements is calculated on the straight-line basis in order to write the assets off 
over their estimated useful lives. 

NTEU Fund 
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NTEUFUND 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

(e) Leased assets 

The Union has not entered into any lease agreements. 

{f) Allowance for doubtful debts 

Allowance for doubtful debts is recognised when collection of trade debtors in full is no longer probablfl. 
Collectibility of overdue accounts Is assessed on an ongoing basis. 

(g) Employee benefits 

Provision is made for the Union's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees 
to balance date. Employee benefits expected to be settied within one year together with benefits arising from 
wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave which will be settled after one year, have been 
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled plus related on-costs. 

Liabilities for employee entitlements, which are not expected to be settled within 12 months, are measured at 
the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits. 

In determining the liability for employee entitlements, consideration has been given to future increases in wage 
and salary rates, and the economic entity's experience with staff departures. Related on-costs have aso been 
included in the liability. 

(h) Income tax 

No provision for Income Tax is necessary as 'Trade Unions" are exempt from income tax under Section 50-15 
of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997. 

{i) Cash flows 

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash includes cash on hand and held at call with banks, net of 
bank overdrafts. 

{j) Investments 

Investments in unlisted companies and unit trusts are carried at the lower of cost and recoverable amount. 
Loans relating to .the investments are offset against the carrying value of the Investment to represent the 
Union's net interest in the investment. 

{k) Goods and services tax 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except 
where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australlan Tax Office (ATO). In these 
circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the 
expense. 

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. 

NTEU Fund 
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NTEU FUND 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued) 

{I) Financial instruments 

Financial assets 

12 

Bank Deposits on Call {Note 5) . 
Bank Deposits on Call are valued at cost. Interest is recognised as it accrues. Total weighted average interest 
rate at balance date was 2.23% (2007: nil%) 

Receivables (Note 6) 
Receivables are carried at the nominal amounts due less any allowance for doubtlul debts. Receivables are 
unsecured and credit terms are usually up to 30 days. 

Current Investments (Note 7) 
Current Investments comprise units in listed trusts at market bid price. Total weighted average interest rate at 
balance date was 2.31% (2007: nil%) 

Financial liabilities 

Payables (Note 1 0) 
Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received as at balance date, 
whether or not invoices have been received. Payables are unsecured, not subject to interest charges and are 
normally settled within 30 days of invoice receipt 

(m) Allocation of Current and NQn<tll;fr~nt 

An Asset or a Liability shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 
(a) it is expected to be settled in the entity's normal operating cycle; 
(b) ft is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 
(c) it is due to be settled within twelve months alter the reporting date; or 
(d) the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months 
after the reporting date. 

All other assets and liabilities shall be classified as non current. 

(n) Information to be provided to members or registrar 

In accordance with the requirements of the Workplace Relations Act 1996, as amended, the attention of 
members is drawn to the provisions of sub-section (1) (2) and (3) of section 272, which reads as follows: 

(1) A member of a reporting uni~ or a Registrar, may apply to the reporting unit for unspecified prescribed 
information in relation to the reporting unit to be made available to the person making the application. 

(2) The application must be In writing and must specify the period within whici), and the manner in which, 
the information is to be mane available. The period must not be less than 14 days after the application 
is given to the reporting unit. 

(3) A reporting unit must comply with an application made under sub-section (1). 

Note: this sub-section is a civil penalty provision. 

NTEU Fund 
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NTEUFUND 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

(o) New accounting standards and interpretations 

13 

Certain new Accounting Standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for the 30 
June 2008 reporting year. The Entrry has not and does not intend to, adopt the following Standards early: 

• Revised AASB 101 'Presentation of Financial Statements', MSB 2007-8 'Amendments to Australian. 
Accounting Standards arising from MSB 101' and AASB 2007-10 'Further Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards arising from AASB 101' which are applicable to financial periods commencing on 
or after 1 January 2009. These changes will impact the presentation of th~> Financial Report but are not 
expected to impact the values disclosed. 

In addition to those Accounting Standards listed above, the AASB has also released a number of other 
Accounting Standards and Australian Interpretations. The application of these Accounting Standards and 
Australian Interpretations are not applicable to the entity. Consequently, they have not been specifically 
identified above. 

(p) Transfer of net assets from NTEU branches and divisions 

At 30 June 200B all assets and liabilities of NTEU branches, divisions and National Office were transferred to 
the NTEU Fund, in accordance with Schedule G of the registered rules. The transfer is a non-reciprocal 
transfer and has been accounted for as a contribution in accordance with AASB 1 004 Contributions. 

(q) Impairment of Assets 

At each reporting date, the Entity reviews the carrying values of Its tangible and Intangible assets to determine 
whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the 
recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the assets fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use, Is 
compared to the assets carrying value. Any excess of the assets carrying value over its recoverable value is 
expensed to the income statement. 

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Entity estimates the 
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

(r) Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributed to the acquisition of assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time 
to prepare for their intended use or sale, are added to the costs of those assets, until such time as the assets 
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. 

All other borrowing costs are recognised in expenses in the period in which they are Incurred. 

NTEU Fund 
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NOTE 2: GIFTED ASSETS 

NTEUFUND 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

14 

As at 30 June 2006 the assets and liabilities of the Branches and Divisions of the NTEU Fund were gifted to NTEU Fund. 
The ne1 value of the assets and liabilities were represented by: 

Assets 

Current Assets 

Cash and equivalents 
Trade and other receivables 
Other financial assets 
Other assets 

Non- Current Assets 

Trade and other receivables 
Other financial assets 
Property, plant and equipment 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 
Trade and other payables 
Financial \labilities 
Provisions 

Non-Current Liabilities 

Trade and other payables 

Financial liabmties 
Provisions 

Total Liabilities 

Net Assets Gifted to NTEU Fund 

NOTE 

5 
6 

7 

8 

7 

9 

10 

11 
12 

10 

11 

12 

4 

NTEU Fund 

ECONOMIC & CHIEF ENTITY 
2008 2007 

$ $ 

6,254,766 
196,358 

4,427,854 

133 060 
11,012,038 

9,185,473 

4904175 
14,089,648 
25,101,686 

1,619,195 
488,625 

1,314,723 

3,422,543 

10,599 
2,730,226 
1,257,349 
3,998,174 

7420,717 

17,680,969 
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NTEUFUND 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

NOTE 3: AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION 

Audit services 
Auditors to the entity 
Other seNices 

. Auditors to the entity 

Audit services 
Auditors of subsidiary 
Other serv;ces 
Auditors of subsidiary 

NOTE 4: REVENUE FROM ORDINARY 
ACTIVITIES 

Non operating revenue; 

Transfer of net assets from NTEU branches 
and divisions 
Doubtful debt reversal on consolidation 

Total non opera1ing revenue 

Total revenue from ordinary activities 

NOTE 5: CASH & CASH EQUIVILANTS 

Cash on hand 
Cash at bank 
Short 1erm deposits 

NOTE 6: TRADE & OTHER RECEIVABLES 

Current 
Trade debtors 
Allowance for doubtful debts 
Other receivables 
Amounts receivable from unitholders 

ECONOMIC ENTITY 
2008 2007 

$ $ 

95,000 

94,000 

' 189,000 

7,000 

1 200 

8200 

17,492,238 
188,731 

17 680,969 

17,680 969 

19,754 
3,966,310 
2,501,018 

6,487 082 

363,483 
(36,269) 

4,230 
514,213 

845,657 

NTEU Fund 
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CHIEF ENTITY 
2008 

$ 

95,000 

94,000 

189,000 

17,492,238 
188,731 

17,680,969 

17,680,969 

19,754 
3,733,994 
2,501.018 

6,254,766 

228,397 
(36,269) 

4,230 

196 358 

2007 

$ 



NTEU FUND 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

NOTE 7: OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Current 
Investments in managed funds 
Other investments 

Non current 
Investments- at valuation: 
Federation of Education Union Unit Trust 
(F.E.U.) 
Federation of Education Unions Pty Ltd 
(Truslee of F.E.U.) 

ECONOMIC ENTITY 
2008 

$ 

4,427,824 
30 

4,427 854 

2007 
$ 

16 

CHIEF ENTITY 
2008 

$ 

4,427,824 
30 

4,427,854 

9,185,471 

2 

9 185,473 

2007 
$ 

The Investment in the F.E.U. consists of 58.9% of the value of Issued units ln the Unit Trust that owns the !and and 
buildings at 120 Clarendon St., South Melbourne. 

NOTE B: OTHER ASSETS 

Prepayments 
Other assets 

133,030 
25,474 

158,504 

NTEU Fund 
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NTEU FUND 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

ECONOMIC ENTITY CHIEF ENTITY 

NOTE 9: PROPERTY, PLANT & 2008 2007 2008 2007 
EQUIPMENT $ $ $ $ 

(i) Book value disclosure 

Property - at valuation 19,651 631 3,901,631 
19 651,631 3 901,631 

Office eqUipment~ fixtures & fittings, 
motor vehicles - at cost 1,497,021 1,320,602 
Accumulated depreciation (985,664) (880,568) 

511,357 440 034 

Leasehold improvements - at cost 759,429 759,429 
Accumulated amortization (196,919) (196,919) 

562,510 562,510 

Net book value 20,725,498 4904175 

{ii) Reconciliation of the carrying amount 

Building Office equipment Leasehold Total 
fixtures & Improvements 

Economic Entity titlln s 

Balance at beginning of period 
Transfers In 19,651,631 511,357 562,510 20,725,498 

Balance at end of period 19,651 631 511,357 562,510 20,725,498 

Building Office equipment Leasehold Total 
fixtures & improvements 

Chief Entity iittin s 

Balance at beginning of period 
Transfers in 3 901,631 440 034 562,510 4,904175 

Balance at end of period 3,901,631 440;034 562,510 4,904,175 

NTEU Fund 
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NTEU FUND 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

NOTE 10:TRADE & OTHER PAY ABLES 

Current 
Trade creditors 
Net GST payable 
Sundry creditors 
Accruals and other payables 
Amount owed to unltholders 
Group loans 

Non current 
Trade creditors 
Sundry creditOrs 

NOTE 11 : FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

Current 
Bank loans 

N.on current 
Bank loans 

Total financial !iablllties 

NOTE 12: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

Current 
Annual leave 
Long service !eave 

Non current 
Long service leave 

Total prOvisions 

ECONOMIC ENTITY 
2008 2007 

$ $ 

495,4154 
103,097 
69,548 

281,512 
4,008,536 

4,958,157 

8,849 
1,750 

10,599 

582,962 

4,438,817 

5,021,779 

1,042,919 
271 804 

1 314,723 

1,257 349 

2,572,072 

NTEU Fund 
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CHIEF ENTITY 
2008 2007 

$ $ 

280,343 
103,097 
69,548 

281,512 

884 695 

1 619,195 

8,849 
1,750 

10,599 

488,625 

2 730,226 

3,218,851 

1,042,919 
271,804 

1,314,723 

1,257,349 

2 572 072 



NTEUFUNO 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

NOTE13:RESERVES 

Defence Fund 
Leave Fund 
Property Fund 

Movements during the year 

Defence Fund 
Balance at beginning of year 
Tr~nsfer from retained surplus 
Balance at end of year 

Leave Fund 
Balance at beginning of year 
Transfer from retained surplus 
Balance at end of year 

Property Fund 
Balance at beginning of year 
Transfer from retained surplus 
Balance at end of year 

NOTE 14: RETAINED SURPLUS 

Accumulated surplus at the beginning o! 
the financial year 
Net operating surplus for the year 
Transfer to and from reserves: 
Defence reserve 
Leave reseJVe 
Property reserve 
Accumulated surplus at the end of the 
finanolal ye~r 

ECONOMIC ENTITY 
2008 2007 

$ $ 

4,517,679 
2,152,147 
4,600,000 

11,269,826 

4,517,679 
4,517,679 

2,152,147 
2,152147 

17,680,969 

(4,517,679) 
. (2,152,147) 

(4,600,000) 

6,411,143 
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CHIEF ENTITY 
2008 2007 

$ $ 

4,517,679 
2,152,147 
4,600,000 

11,269,826 

4,517,679 
4,517 679 

2,152,147 
2,152,147 

17,680,969 

(4,517,679) 
(2, 152, 147) 
(4,600,000) 

6,411,143 
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NTEUFUND 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

NOTE 15: CASH FLOW INFORMATION 

Reconciliation of net operating surplus to 
net cash flows from operating activities: 

Net operating surplus 

Non-cash ftows in operating activities: 
Contribution of fixed assets 
Movement in minority interest 
Movement In employee provisions 

Changes In assets and liabilities: 
(Increase) I decrease in receivables 
{Increase) I decrease in Investments 
(Increase) I decrease In other assets 
Increase I (decrease) In loans payable 
Increase I (decrease) in payables 

Net cash flows 'from operating activitles 

NOTE 16: RELATED PARTY INFORMATION 

{a) Executive officers 

ECONOMIC ENTITY 
2008 2007 

$ $ 

17,680,969 

(20,725,498) 
2,401,019 
2 572,072 

(845,657} 
(4,427,854) 

(158,504) 
5,021,509 
4,969,026 

6,487 082 

CHIEF ENTITY 
2008 2007 

$ $ 

17,680,969 

(4,904,175) 

2 572072 

(196,360) 
(13,6t3,325} 

(133,060) 
3,218,851 
t ,629 794 

6,254,766 

The names of each person holding the- position of Executive Officer of the NTEU Fund during the financial year are: 

Carolyn Allport 
Matthew McGowen 
Neil Mudford 
Chris Game 
Jeanette Pierce 
Jeannie Rea 

Grahame McCulloch 
Margaret Lee 
Thomas Dunning 
James Doughney 
Andrew Bonnell 
Kevin Poynter 

Remuneration of key management personnel 

Edward Murphy 
Gregory McCarthy 
Lyne1\e Bloom 
Shane Motlap 
Derek Corrigan 
Mark Probst 

Income received or due and receivable by key management personnel 
of the Union. 

Short term employee benefits 
Post employment benefits 

NTEU Fund 

2008 
$ 

Jo Hibbert 
Terry Mason 
Susan Band!as 
Thomas Stewart 
Jan Hunt 
Anastasia Kolaldis 

2007 
$ 

416,538 

70 81t 

487,349 
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NTEU FUND 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

NOTE 16: RELATED PARTY INFORMATION (con1lnUed) 

(b) Other related parties 

{i) State, Division and National branches 

The NTEU Fund undertakes numerous transactions with State Divisions, Branches and National Office. All 
transactions between the State Divisions, Branches and National Office were in 1he ordinary course of business and 
on normal commerclal terms and at market rates. 

(li) Federation of Education Union Unit Trust (F.E.U.) 

The N-TEU Fund is a tenant ofthe_bui!ding owned by .the F.E.U. Rent and outgoings·in connection with the occupancy 
are paid to the F.E.U. in the ordinary course of business and on normal commercial terms and conditions and at 
market rateS. 

The amount payable to the F .E.U. at the end of the financial year is dlsc1osed in Note 9 to the financial statements. 

(c) Subsidiaries 

The consolidated financial statements include the linanclai statements of NTEU Fund and subsidiaries listed In the 
following table. 

Name 
Federation oi Education Unions Trust 

Country of 
fncorporatlon 

Australia 

"'/,. Ownership Interest 
2008 2007 

58.9% 

On 30 June 2008, the NTEU Fund applied AASB127 for the first time. The combined unit holding of the Victorian 
Division and National Office required the subsidiary to be consolidated. 

NTEU Fund 
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NTEUFUND 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

NOTE 17: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

(a) Significan~ accounting policies 

22 

Detalls of the significant acCounting policies and mBihods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of 
measurement, and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, with respect to each class of financial 
asset, tlnanclal !lability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 1 to the financial statements. 

(b) Categorisation of financial instruments 

(i) Economic Entity 
Financial assets Note Category Carrying amount Carrying amount 

2008 2007 
Cash ~n.a cash equlvalents 5 N/A 6,487,082 

Receivables 6 Loans and receivables 845,657 

Other financial assets 7 Investments 4,427,854 

Financial liabilities 

Payables 10 FinancfalliabHitles 4,865,659 

Borrowings 11 Interest be-aring loans 5,021,779 

(ii) Chief Entit 
Fihancial assets Note Category cattytng amount Carrying amount 

2008 2007 
Cash and cash equivalents 5 N/A 6,254,766 

Receivables 6 Loans and receivables 196,358 

Other financial assets 7 Investments 4,427,854 

Financial liabilities 

Payables 10 Financial liabilities 1,526,697 

Borrowings 11 Interest bearing loans 3,218,851 

FlnanciaJ liabilities excludes statutory financial liabilities (i.e GST payable). 

NTEU Fund 
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NTEU FUND 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

NOTE 17: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND F!MANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT- Con!lnued 

(c) Credit risk 

23 

Credit risk represents the loss that would be recOgnised It counterparties failed to pertorm as contracted. The Fund's 
maxi.tnum exposure to credit risk at balance date in relation to each class of recognised financial asset is represented by 
the carrylng amount of those assets as indicated in the balance sheet 

Financial assets that are either past due or Impaired 

Currently the Fund does not hold any collateral as security nor credit enhancements relatlng to any of its 11nanclal assets. 
As at the reporting date, there Is no indication that the financial assets have been impaired. 
There are no financial assets that have had their terms renego1\ated so as to prevent them from being past due or 
impaired, and they are stated at the carrying amounts as indicated. The following table discloses the ageing only of 
financial assets that are past due but not impaired. 

Interest rate exposure and ageing analysis of financial assets 

(i) Economic Entity 

Weighted Interest rate exposure Past due by 
average Fixed Variable Non- Less 
effective Carrying interest interest Interest than 1 1-3 3 months 1-5 

interest rate amount rate rate bearing Month months -1 year years 
2008 % 

Cash assets 2.23 6,487,082 2,501,016 3,966,310 19,754 
Recelvables 645,657 645,657 
Other 4,427,654 4,427,854 

11,760,593 2,501,018 3,966,310 5,293,265 

2007 

Cash assets 
Receivables 

Other 

(II) Chief Entity 

Weighted Interest rate exposure Past due by 
average Fixed Variable Non- Less 
effective Carrying interest interest interest than 1 1-3 3 months 1-5 

interest rate amount rate rate bearing Month months -I year years 
2008 % 
Cash assets 2.31 6,254,766 2,501,018 3,733,994 19,754 
Receivables 196,358 196,358 

Oiher 4A271854 4,427,854 

10,878,978 2,501,018 3,733,994 4,643,966 

2007 
Cash assets 
Receivables 
Olher 
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NTEUFUND 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

NOTE 17: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT· Continued 

(d) LiqUidity risk 

Liquidity risk arises when the Fuild is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Fund operates under the 
policy of settling financial obligations within 30 days and in the event of a dispute, makes payments within 30 days from the. 
date of resolution. It also continuously manages risk through monitoring future cash flows and maturities planning to 
ensure adequate holding of high quality liquid assets and dealing in highly liquid markets. 
The Fund's exposure to liquidity risk is deemed insignlffcant based on priOr periods'·data and current assessment o1 rlsk. 
Maximum exposure to liquidity risk is the carrying amounts of financialliabll\t!es. 

Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial !!abilities 
(i} Economic Entity 

2008 
Payables 
Borrowings 

2007 

Pay abies 
Borrowings 

(II) 

2008 
Pay abies 
Borrowings 

2007 
Payables 
Borrowings 

Weighted 
average 
effective 

interest rate 

% 

7.24 

Chief Entity 
Weighted 
average 
effective 

interest rate 

% 

6.93 

(e) Market risk 

Nominal 
amount 

4,865,659 

Interest rate exposure 

Fixed Variable Non-
interest interest interest 

rate rate bearing 

4,865,659 

5,012,779 5,012,779 

9,878,438 5,012,779 4,865,659 

Interest rate exposure 

Fixed Variable Non~ 

Nominal interest interest interest 
amount rate rate bearing 

1,526,697 1,526,697 

3,218,851 3,218,851 

4,745$46 3,218,851 1,526,697 

Less 
than 1 
month 

Less 
than 1 
month 

Maturity dates 

1-3 
months 

3 months 1-5 
- 1 year years 

Maturity dates 

1-3 3 months 1-5 
months -1 year years 

The Fund's exposure to market risk is primarily through Interest rate risk and other price risks with currently no exposure to 
forelgn currency risk. Objectives, policies and processes used to manage each of these risks are disclosed in the 
paragraphs below. 

(f) Interest rate risk 
Exposure to interest rate risk might arise primarily through the Fund's cash & deposits. Minimisation of risk is achieved by 
mainly undertaking fixed rate or non-interest bearing 1inancia\ instruments. 
The Fund's exposure to Interest rate risk ls set out in the following table. 
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NTEU FUND 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

NOTE 17: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT· Continued 

(g) Sensitivity disclosure analysis 

25 

Taking lnto account past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts, and management's knowledge and experience of the financial markets, the Fund believes the movements in the 
table below are 'reasonably possible' -over the next 12 months. The table discfoses the impact on net operating resuft and equiiy for each category of financial instrument held by the Fund at 
year-end as presented to key management personnel. if the above movements were to occur. 

Market risk exposure 

Iii Economic Entit 
Interest rate risk Marker risk 

·1% +1% w10% f10% 
(100 basis points} (100 basis points} (1000 basis points} (1000 basis points) 

Carrying 
amount Surplus Equity Surplus Equity Surplus Equity Surplus Equity 

2008 

Financial assets: 

Cash assets-variable rates 3,966,310 (39,663) (39,663) 39,663 39,663 

Investments 4,427 854 (442,785) (442,785) 442 785 442,785 
Total 8,394,164 (39,663) (39,663) 39,663 39,663 (442,785) (442,785) 442,785 442,785 

Financial !{abilities; 

Borrowings 5,012,779 50,128 50,128 (50, 126) (50,128) 

Total 5,012,779 50,128 50,128 (50,126) (50, 128) 

NTEU Fund 
Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2008 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006 

NOTE 17: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT- Continued 

Market risk exposure (continued) 

iv Chief Entlt 
Interest rate risk 

~1% +1% 
(100 basis points) {100 basis points) 

Carrying 
amount Surplus Equity Sup/us Equity 

2008 

Financial assets: 

Cash assets~variable cates 3,733,994 (37,340) (37,340) 37,340 37,340 

Investments 4,427,854 

Total 8,161,854 (37,340) (37,340) 37,340 37,340 

Frnanciaf liabilities: 

Bor-rowings 3,218.851 41,035 41,035 (41,035) (41 ,035) 

Total 3,218.851 41,035 41,035 (41,035) (41,035) 

(h) Fair value 

The fair values and net fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows; 

26 

Market risk 
-10% +10% 

{1000 basis points} (1000 basis points) 

Surplus Equity Sure/us Equitv 

(442,785) (442,785) 442,785 442,785 
(442,785) (442,785) 442,785 442,785 

the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded in active !tquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices; 
and 

the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis. 

The Fund considers that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the financial report to be a fair approximation of their fair values, as marketable securities 
are recorded at their respective quoted market prices and cash assets are held in short term deposits. 

NTEU Fund 
Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2008 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 

NTEU FUND 

The general purpose financial report arid Executive Committee's responsibiUty 

Level 5, 30 Collins Street 
Melbourne Victoria 3000 

TELEPHONE +613 9654 0100 
FACSIMILE +613 9654 0122 

www.dfl~co!Hns.com.au 

We have audited the financial report of NTEU Fund. The financial report includes the consolidated entity 
comprising the chief entity and the entities it controlled at the end of the year or from time to time during the year. 

The general purpose financial report comprises the income statement, balance sheet, cash flow statement, 
statement of changes in equity, accompanying notes to the financial statements, and the Executive Committee's 
statement of the NTEU Fund for the year ended 30 June 2008. 

The Executive Committee of the Union is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report 
in accordance with the Workplace Relation Act 1996. This includes responsibility for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records and internal controls that are designed to prevent and detect frauds and error, and for the 
accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in the financial report. 

Audit approach 

We conducted an independent audit in order to express an opinion to the members of the Union. Our audit was 
conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards in order to provide reasonable assurance as to 
whether the financial report is free of material misstatements. The nature of an audit is influenced by factors such 
as the use of professional judgment, selective testing, the inherent limitation of internal control, and the availability 
of persuasive rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore, an audit cannot guarantee that all material 
misstatements have been detected. 

We performed procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents fairly, in 
accordance with Accounting Standards and other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia and the 
Workplace Relations Act 1996, a view which is consistent with our understanding of the Union's financial position, 
and of its performance as represented by the results of its operations and the cash fiows. 

We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures, which include: 
o examining on a test basis, information to provide evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 

financial report; and 
, t;lssessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disclosures used and the reasonableness of 

significant accounting estimates made by the executive Committee. 

While we considered the effectiveness of management internal controls over financial reporting when determining 
the nature and extent of our procedures, our audit was not designed to provide assurance of internal controls. 

Independence 

In conducting our audit, we followed applicable independence requirements of Australian professional ethical 
pronouncements. 

Audit Opinion 

In our opinion the general purpose financial report is presented fairly in accordance with applicable Australian 
Accounting Standards and the requirements imposed by Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the RAO Schedule of the 
Workplace Relations Act 1996. 

<~ () ~ \._.s;:t"--·'-'1 . ..:),::, 
DFK Collins 
Chartered Accountants 

s,"'~ ·r;."9q 
Simon Bragg, A.C.A. "\.)_) 
Partner 
Registered Company Auditor, Registration Number: 291536 

Melbourne 

Date: ;;?. "'> c'::!c!l-d.J2~ "b:::f( 

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation ~t~~ ~ ml!l!illll( 
A member finn of DFK lnternational1 a worldwide association of independent accounting firms and business advisers ',~-~~IJ'r fl 

I~IU:«~l!OWid 



NTEUFUND 

CONCISE FINANCIAL REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

The concise financial report has been derived from the full financial report and cannot be 
expected to provide as full an understanding of lhe financial performance, financial position 
and financial and investing activities of the reporting unit to assist understanding of the 
members. 

Information to be Provided to Members or Registrar 

In accordance with the requirements of the Workplace Relations Act 1996, the attention of 
members is drawn to the provision of subsections (1), (2) and (3) of section 272 of Schedule 
1 B - Registration of accountability of Organisations which read as follows; 

(1) ''A member of a reporting unit, or a Registrar, may apply to the reporting unit for 
specified prescribed information in relation to the reporting unit to be made available to the 
person making the application. 

(2) The application must be in writing and must specify the period within which, and the 
matter in which, the information Is to be made available. The period must not be less than 14 
days after the application Is given to the reporting unit. 

(3) A reporting unit must comply with an application made under subsection (1 )." 

Financial Statements 

The Union will provide a copy of the report, accounts and statements for the year ended 30 
June 2008 free of charge to any member who requests them. 



collins 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Level 5, 30 Collins Street 
Melbourne Victoria 3000 

TELEPHONE +613 9654 0100 

PACS!MILE +613 9654 0122 

www.dfkcollins.com.au 

Auditors' Report to the Members of the NTEU Fund National Council 

We certify that the attached Concise Financial Report is a fair and accurate summary of the 
reports, accounts and statements of the NTEU Fund National Council for the year ended 30 
June 2008. Our Auditors' Report on the financial statements dated 23 October 2009, did not 
contain particulars of any deficiency, failure or shortcomings as referred to in the Workplace 
Relations Act 1996 and complied with the Australian Accounting Standards. 

~~ C0'-~·--.l-:::, 
DFKCollins 
Chartered Accountants 

s~~" bvv~-:J~ 
Simon Bragg, A. C.A. · --! 
Partner 
Registered Company Auditor, Registration Number: 291536 

Melbourne 
23 October 2009 

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation ·~-~~ ~!llll'i!l!ll{ 
A member firm of DFK International, a worldwide association of independent accounting firms and business advisers \:~ ur 

·~ INlHHI.IIONhl 



NTEUFUND 

COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

On /.A:! ft0f2009 the Committee of Management of the NTEU Fund passed the fallowing 
resolution in relation to the general purpose financial report (GPFR) of the reporting unit for 
the financial year ended 30 June 2008: 

The Committee of Management declares in relation to the GPFR that in its opinion: 

(a) the financial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting Standards; 

(b) the financial statements comply with the reporting guidelines of the Industrial Registrar; 

(c) the financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial 
performance, financial position and cash flows of the reporting unit for the financial year 
to which they relate; 

(d) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the reporting unit will be able to pay its 
debts as and when they become due and payable; 

{e) during the financial year to which the GPFR relates and since the end of that year: 

i. meetings of the committee of management were held In accordance with the rules of 
the organisation Including the rules of the branch concerned; and 

li. the financial affairs of the reporting unit have been managed in accordance with the 
rules of the organisation including the rules of a branch concerned: and 

iii. the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept and maintained in 
accordance with the RAO Schedule and the RAO Regulations; and 

lv. where the organisation consists of two or more reporting units, the financial records 
of the reporting unit have been kept as far as practicable, In a consistent manner to 
each of the other reporting units of the organisation; and 

v. the information sought in any request of a member of the reporting unit or a Registrar 
duly made under section 272 of the RAO Schedule has been furnished to the 
member or Registrar; and 

vi. there has been compliance with any order for Inspection of financial records made by 
the Commission under section 273 of the RAO Schedule. 

(f) in relation to recovery of wages activity: 

i. the financial report on recovery of wages activity has been fairly and accurately 
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the reporting guidelines of the 
Industrial Registrar; and 

ii. the committee of management caused the auditor to include in the scope of the audit 
required under subsection 257(1) of the RAO Schedule all recovery of wages activity 
by the reporting unit in which revenues had been derived for the financial year in 
respect of such activity; and 

iii. no fees or reimbursements of expenses in relation to recovery of wages activity or 
donations or other contributions were deducted from moneys recovered from 
employers on behalf of worl<ens other than reported in the financial report on recovery 
of wages activity and the notes to the financial statements; and 



NTEUFUND 

COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 (continued) 

iv .. that prior to engaging in any recovery of wages activity, the organisation has 
disclosed to members by way of a written policy all fees to be charged or 
reimbursement of expenses required for recovery of wages activity, and any likely 
request for donations or other contributions in acting for a worker in recovery of 
wages activity; and 

v. no fees or reimbursements of expenses in relation to recovery of wages activity or 
donations or other contributions were deducted from moneys recovered from 
employers on behalf of workers until distributions of recovered money were made to 
the workers. · 

For Committee of Management: Graeme McCulloch 

Title: General Secretary 

Signature: ~~AJ-t~ 
Date: "J.o/ f o / iJ.o01 



NTEUFUNO 

OPERATING REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

Principal activities 

The principal activities of the Union during the financial year were: 

• To improve and protect the salaries and conditions of employment of our members; 

• To represent our members in approaches to and discussions with their employer; 

• To negotiate collective agreements which improve the conditions of employment of 
our members; 

• To enforce existing industrial agreements on behalf of our members; and 

• To promote Industrial peace through conciliation and arbitration. 

Results of principal activities 

The Union's principal activities resulted in the maintenance and improvement of the salaries 
and conditions of employment of our members, especially for those members covered by 
collective agreements negotiated by the Union. 

Significant changes in the nature of principal activities 

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Union's principal activities during the 
financial year. 

Significant changes in the Union's financial affairs 

Other than the transfer of assets and liabilities to the NTEU Fund from NTEU Branches and 
Divisions as detailed in Note 1 to the financial statements, no other matters or circumstances 
arose during the reporting year which significantly affected the financial affairs of the Entity. 

Trustee or Director of a Trustee Company of a Superannuation Entity or an Exempt 
Public Sector Superannuation Scheme 

Edward Murphy, National Assistant Secretary, and NTEU Executive member is a Director of 
Unisuper, the industry Superannuation fund for academics and general staff in higher 
education institutions. 

Number of members 

The number of persons who, at the end of the financial year, were recorded on the Register of 
Members of the entities Included in the NTEU Fund was 23,966. 

Number of employees 

The number of persons who were, at the end of the financial year, employees of the Union 
was 112.1 measured on a full time equivalent basis. 



NTEU FUND 

OPERATING REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 (continued) 

Members of the committee of management 

The persons who held office as members of the Committee of Management of the Union at 
the end of the financial year were: 

President Carolyn Allport 

Vice President (Academic) Gregory McCarthy 

Vice President (General) Jo Hibbert 

General Secretary Grahame McCulloch 

National Assistant Secretary Edward Murphy 

Indigenous Member Terry Mason 

National Executive Member Matthew McGowen 

National Executive Member Margaret Lee 

National Executive Member Neil Mudford 

National Executive Member Thomas Dunning 

National Executive Member Lyn Bloom 

National Executive Member Susan Bandlas 

National Executive Member Chris Game 

National Executive Member James Doughney 

National Executive Member Shane Motlap 

National Executive Member Thomas Stewart 

National Executive Member Jeanette Pierce 

National Executive Member Andrew Bonnell 

National Executive Member Derek Corrigan 

National Executive Member Jan Hunt 

National Executive Member Jeannie Rea 

National Executive Member Kevin Poynter 

Executive Ot!lcer {President) Mark Probst 

Executive Officer (General Secretary) Anastasia Kotaidis 



NTEUFUND 

OPERATING REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 (continued) 

Manner of resignation- s254(2)(c) 

Members may resign from the Union in accordance with Rule 11 (Resignation from 
Membership) which reads as follows: 

11. i A member may resign from membership by written notice addressed and delivered to 
the member's Division Secretary or Branch Secretary provided that: 

(a) Where a written notice of resignation is received by a Division Secretary, he or 
she shall as soon as practicable forward a copy of the notice of resignation to the 
appropriate Branch Secretary; or 

(b) Where a written notice of resignation is received by a Branch Secretary, he or 
she shall as soon as practicable forward a copy of the notice of resignation to the 
relevant Division Secretary. 

11.2 A notice of resignation from membership takes effect: 

(a) where the member ceases to be eligible to become a member of the Union 

(i) on the day on which the notice is received by the Union; or 

(ii) on the day specified in the notice, which is a day not earlier than the day 
when the member ceases to be eligible to become a member; 

whichever is later; or 

(b) in any other case: 

(i) at the end of two weeks, or if permitted by law three months after the 
notice is received by the Union; or 

(ii) on the day specified in the notice; 

whichever is later. 

i 1.3 Any dues payable but not paid by a former member in relation to a period before the 
member's resignation took effect, may be sued for and recovered in the name of the 
Union in a court of competent jurisdiction, as a debt due to the Union. 

i i .4 A notice delivered to the Division Secretary or Branch Secretary shall be taken to 
have been received by the Union when it was delivered. 

1 i .5 A notice of resignation that has been received by the Union is not invalid because it 
was not addressed and delivered in accordance with sub-rule 1 of this rule. 

i 1.6 A resignation from memberstJip is valid even if it is not effected in accordance with 
this rule if the member is informed in writing by at on behalf of the Union that the 
resignation has been accepted. 

1 i. 7 Cessation of payment of any dues, levies and other amounts by a member does not, 
of itself, terminate membership of the Union. 

Name: Grahame McCulloch 

Title: General Secretary 

Signature: ;~f1AfJ/I&Jt{~ 



NTEUFUND 

INCOME STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

ECONOMIC ENTITY CHIEF ENTITY 
Note 2008 2007 2008 2007 

$ $ $ $ 

REVENUE FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES 4, 1(p) 17,680,969 17,680,969 

EXPENSES 

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 17,680,969 17,680,969 



NTEUFUND 

BALANCE SHEET 

AS AT 30 JUNE 2008 

ECONOMIC ENTITY CHIEF ENTITY 
Note 2008 2007 2008 2007 

$ $ $ $ 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 5 6,487,082 6,254,766 
Trade and other receivables 6 845,657 196,358 
Other financial assets 7 4,427,854 4,427,854 
Other assets 8 158,504 133,060 

TOTAL CURRENT AsSETS 11,919097 11,012,038 

NON·CURRENT ASSETS 
Other financial assets 7 9,185,473 

Property, plant and equipment 9 20,725,498 4,904,175 

TOTAL NON·CURRENT ASSETS 20,725,498 14 089,648 

TOTAL ASsETS 32,644,595 25,101,686 

LIABILITIES 
Trade and other payables 10 4,958,157 1,619,195 
Flnanoialllabllities 11 582,962 488,625 
Employee benefits 12 1,314,723 1,314,723 
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 6,855,842 3,422,543 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Trade and other payables 10 10,599 10,599 

Financial liabilities 11 4,438,817 2,730,226 

Employee benefits 12 1,257,349 1,257,349 
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 5,706,765 3,998,174 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 12,562,607 7,420 717 

NET ASSETS 20,081,988 17,680,969 

EQUITY 
Reserves 13 11,269,826 11,269,826 
Retained surplus 14 6,411,143 6,411,143 
Minority Interest 2 401,019 

TOTAL EQUITY 20,081,988 17,680,969 



NTEUFUND 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

Reserves Retained Surplus Minority Total Equity 
Interest 

$ $ $ $ 

ECONOMIC ENTITY 

At 1 July 2006 

Surplus lor the year 

At 30 June 2007 

Surplus for the year 17,680,969 17,680,969 

Transfers from reserves 11,269,826 11,269,826 

Transfers to reserves (11 ,269,826) (1 1 ,269,826) 

Minority Interest upon 
consolidation 2,401,019 2,401,019 

At 30 June 2008 11,269,826 6,411,143 2,401,019 20,081,988 

CHIEF ENTITY 

At 1 July 2006 

Surplus for the year 

At 30 June 2007 

Surplus for the year 17,680,969 17,680,969 

Transfets from reserves 11,269,826 11,269,826 

Transfers to reserves (11 ,269,826) (11 ,269,826) 

At 30 June 2008 11,269,826 6,411,143 17,660,969 



NTEUFUND 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 

ECONOMIC ENTITY CHIEF ENTITY 

Note 2008 2007 2008 2007 
$ $ $ s 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Payments 
Contribution of cash and cash equivalents 6,487.0S2 6,254,766 

Net cash provided by operating activities 15 6,487,082 6 254,766 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Net cash used in investing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Net increase in cash & cash equivalents held 6,487,082 6,254,766 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 5 6,487,082 6,254,766 - ·-· - -



 

 11 Exhibition Street 
Melbourne VIC 3000 

GPO Box 1994 
Melbourne VIC 3001 

Telephone: (03) 8661 7777 
International: (613) 8661 7777 

Facsimile: (03) 9655 0401 
Email: melbourne@fwa.gov.au 

 

9 February 2010 

Jenny Savage 
National Finance Coordinator  
National Tertiary Education Industry Union 
PO Box 1323 
South Melbourne VIC 3205 
By email: jsavage@nteu.org.au 
 
cc: Simon Bragg 
Partner, DFK Collins Chartered Accountants 
Level 5, 30 Collins Street 
Melbourne, Victoria, 3000 
By email: simon.bragg@dfkcollins.com.au 

Dear Ms Savage 

Re: Financial Reports for the NTEU National Office and the NTEU Fund for the year ended 
30 June 2008 (FR2008/390)  

I acknowledge receipt of the financial reports of the NTEU national office and the NTEU Fund for 
the year ended 30 June 2008. The documents were lodged with Fair Work Australia on 8 
January 2010. 

The financial reports have not been filed as the auditor’s statements regarding the concise 
reports do not appear to have addressed the requirements of the Fair Work (Registered 
Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act). 

Paragraph 265(3)(c) of the RO Act requires a concise report to consist of a statement by the 
auditor that concise report has been audited and whether the concise report complies with the 
relevant Australian Accounting Standards. The Auditor’s Reports for both concise reports do not 
specify that they have been audited nor do they provide an opinion as to whether they comply 
with the relevant Australian Accounting Standards. 

Accordingly, in order to secure compliance with your obligations under the RO Act, the NTEU is 
required to obtain Auditor’s statements for both concise reports which address the matters set 
out in paragraph 265(3)(c) of the RO Act. I have forwarded a copy of this letter to your auditor. If 
you have any queries I can be contacted on 03 8661 7929 or by return email on 
eve.anderson@fwa.gov.au. 

Yours sincerely 

  
Eve Anderson 
Tribunal Services and Organisations 
Fair Work Australia 
Tel: 03 86617929 
Email: eve.anderson@fwa.gov.au 

mailto:jsavage@nteu.org.au
mailto:simon.bragg@dfkcollins.com.au
http://www.fwa.gov.au/documents/legislation/fw_orgs_reg_act/fw_reorgs_act.htm#P3847_376254
mailto:eve.anderson@fwa.gov.au
mailto:eve.anderson@fwa.gov.au


Level 5, 30 Collins Street 
Melbourne Victoria 3000 

TELEPHONE +61 3 9654 0100 

FACSIMILE +613 9654 0122 

www.dfllcollins.com .au 

Auditors' Report to the M embers of the National Tertiary Education Indus try 
Union National Council 

We certify that the attached Concise Financial Report has been audited and is a fair and 
accurate summary of the reports, accounts and statements of the National Tertiary Education 
Industry Union National Council for the year ended 30 June 2008. Our Auditors' Report on 
the financial statements dated 23 October 2009, did not contain particulars of any deficiency, 
failure or shortcomings as referred to in the Workplace Relations Act 1996 and complied with 
the Australian Accounting Standards. 

9,.---v.::: ~ •. .-v· 
DFK Collins 
Chartered Accountants 

':),____.'"' ~~ 
Simon Bragg, A.C.A. 
Partner 
Registered Company Auditor, Registration Number: 291536 

Melbourne 
12 February 2010 

A member fillll of Of!( I ntematlonal a worldwide assoelaUon of 1.-.dependenl aot>Ounting II rms and business a<M sers 



Level 5, 30 Collins Street 

Melbourne Victoria 3000 

TELEPHONE +613 9654 0100 
FACSIMILE +61 3 9654 0122 

www.dfkcollins.com.au 

Auditors' Report to the Members of the NTEU Fund National Council 

We certify that the attached Concise Financial Report has been audited and is a fair and 
accurate summary of the reports, accounts and statements of the NTEU Fund National 
Council for the year ended 30 June 2008. Our Auditors' Report on the financial statements 
dated 23 October 2009, did not contain particulars of any deficiency, failure or shortcomings 
as referred to in the Workplace Relations Act 1996 and complied with the Australian 
Accounting Standards. 

~~~) 
DFK Collins 
Chartered Accountants 

~;A~A-y 
Partner 
Registered Company Auditor, Registration Number: 291536 

Melbourne 
12 February 2010 

A mombor firm ot DFK International a wo~dWide association of lr.dependent accounting firms and busines-s ad>1sers ~i:)rl( 
~~ lr~liHitlll 
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